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ABBREVIATION/ ACRONYMS

AFS Annual Financial Statements

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

CEO Chief Executive Officer

COGHSTA Department of Cooperative Governance, Housing, Settlements and

Traditional Affairs

FRC Finance and Risk Committee

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Principles
GTEDA Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency
GTFSC Greater Tzaneen Financial Services Cooperatives
GTM Greater Tzaneen Municipality

HR & REMCO Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
IDP Integrated Development Plan

KPI Key Performance Indicator

LDA Limpopo Department of Agriculture

LED Local Economic Development

MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act

MSCOA Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts

MSA Municipal Systems Act

PA Personal Assistant

PIC Project and Investment Committee

PMU Project Management Unit

SETA Sectoral Education Training Authority

SDBIP Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
SMME Small Medium Micro Enterprise

SALGA South African Local Government Association
SALGBC South African Local Government Bargaining Council
SEC Social and Ethics Committee

SCM Supply Chain Management



INTRODUCTION

It is an honour to submit the Annual Report of the Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency
(GTEDA) for the period 013t July 2020 to 30" June 2021, in accordance with Chapter 12 (Section
121) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003).

GTEDA as a Municipal entity is required to prepare an Annual Report in accordance with the
Provisions of Section 121 of its founding legislation, the Local Government: Municipal Finance
Management Act (MFMA), 2003 (Act 56 of 2003) read with Municipal System Act, 2000 (Act No 32
of 2000).
In terms of Section 121, the purpose of this Annual Report is:
a) To provide a record of the activities of GTEDA during the Financial Year 2020/21.
b) To provide a report on performance against the budget of GTEDA for the same period;
and
¢) To promote accountability to the local communities of Greater Tzaneen Municipalities
for the decisions made throughout the year by GTEDA.

It is through the Annual Report that GTEDA is able to foster transparency and accountability by
submitting the following for the Year Ending 30" June 2021:

i.  Audited Annual Financial Statements.

ii.  Auditors Report; and

iii.  Annual Performance Report.




LEGISLATIVE/ REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

GTEDA as a Municipal Entity wholly owned by GTM, established to implement economic

development within the GTM area, derives its legislative mandate first and foremost from Chapter
10 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003) and its Regulations read
with Chapter 8A of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000) and its Regulations. GTEDA
also ensures compliance, to the extent applicable to other legislation governing local government

including, but not limited to the following:

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act. 108 of 1996).

. Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998).

Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004).

Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998).

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act no. 75 of 1997).

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003).
Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002) and its Regulations.

Division of Revenue Act, 6 (Act No. 6 of 2012).

Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998).

Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Act, 1997 (Act No. 97 of 2005).
Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 (Act No. 13 of 2005).
Companies Act & Regulations 71 of 2008.

Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995).

Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act, 2007 (Act No 12 of 2007).

National Archives Act of South Africa Act, 1996 (Act No. 43 of 1996).

Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993).

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000) and its
Regulations.

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No. 12 of 2004).
Promotion of Access to Informatidn Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000).

Promotion of Administration to Justice Act, 2000 (Act No. 3 of 2000).

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of 2000).
Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998).

Skills Development Levy Act, 1999 Act No. 9 of 1999.

Traditional Leadership and Governance Framework Act, 2003 (Act No. 41 of 2003).



CHAPTER 1: STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
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VISION MISSION /N VALUES
“
’ - ,
To be a self-financing We strive to attract Integrity
Agency that leads in investments into the Greater Empowerment
developing anf Tzaneen Municipal area, Transparency
inclusive, thriving,§ facilitate in innovative and Accountability
and sustainable efficient ways, development of Innovation
' economy for the an economy that is inclusive, Excellence
" people of the Greater sustainable, and resilient. We Partnering
' Tzaneen Municipal believe in the potential of our
area. people to drive their own
— development.
T e e e e ——C Rt )
6. Financially viable and sustainable , STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
institution . .
1. Improved socio-economic status of the
Effective and efficient administration )
community
Organisational excellence and growth .
2. Enhanced capacity of entrepreneurs to
Improved and inclusive local economy ) . )
access required support and information
10. Sustained good corporate governance i
‘ 3. Improved stakeholder relations
11. Improved capacity to access and analyse .
4. Enhanced capacity of entrepreneurs to
economic data . »
access funding opportunities
12. Improved human capital ) i
5. Increased inward investment




CHAIPERSON'S FOREWORD

This is the last foreword to an annual report of GTEDA that
we write as our term has come to an end. Looking back over
the years to achieve the objectives for which any
development agency is created, there must be a deep
appreciation by that principal organisation of the role that it
has to play. Such an understanding of the reason for the
existence of the agency will inevitably translate to a
corresponding commitment of resources of all kinds —
finances, time, land etc. The entity has over the years have
had to deal with varied commitment to its course as and
when elections took place and new administration were
ushered in as well as when there were changes in the
administrative leadership of the parent municipality. This
undoubtedly has a profound impact on its ability to
vigorously pursue its mandate.

It has also been very clear that the work of any board of
directors starts with a clearly articulated strategy. This
board has by and large pursued a consistent strategy that
was anchored on an appreciation of the specific location of
the Greater Tzaneen Municipality in the context of the
government’s  priorities espoused in the National
Plan (NDP),

Development Plan, the Mopani District priorities as well as

Development the province’s Limpopo
those of the Greater Tzaneen Municipality itself. In the
context of the severe resource constraints that even led to
the Auditor-General of South Africa raising issue with our
going concern status, the entity has laid the seeds for the
realisation of the objectives of employment creation that is
tied to promoting food security and economic growth in the
municipal area. The Board has recently reviewed its
strategy and in that process still found the vision of the entity
relevant and commendable to the next board.

South Africa needs an inclusive growth of the economy — a
task that requires a transformative mindset where GTEDA
is understood to be a catalyst for change in the participatory
landscape of the economy of the area. This is the reason
the agency moved towards development of its training and
development portfolio that feeds into its incubation activities
such that there is a seamless support trajectory of a
business from cradle to prosperity. There are SMMEs and
cooperatives through which GTEDA proudly claims
success in its efforts to support enterprise development.

The COVID-19 pandemic presented a particular challenge
in that it had a negative impact of all businesses and
particularly small ones. GTEDA has the quadrupled
challenge of supporting businesses to navigate the fatal
effects of lockdowns and the generally subdued economy
that South Africa is. It has demonstrated capacity o live up
to this although much can still be done. |

The Board is grateful to the support it received from the
management and staff of GTEDA - a small team of
dedicated individuals who keep growing the demonstrated
immense integrity and commitment to the core business ;of
the organisation. It is also grateful to the support received
from the parent municipality that continued to improve over
time. The Risk and Compliance; and Audit Committees
shared with the Municipality have consistently provided the
invaluable advice that GTEDA so much needed.

It is a singular challenge for the organisation to transcend
beyond the consistent unqualified audit opinion to the
illusive clean audit status. It behoves the municipality 1to
closely work with the entity to address the VAT liability

matter as well as improve the going concern status.

GTEDA remains a huge opportunity for the municipality of
Greater Tzaneen and perhaps the district as a whole. it is
critical that a deep conversation is had with the new
leadership of the municipality with a view to a much more
meaningful role for the entity in social and economic
development. |

Mr. MZ Mawasha
Board Chairperson



The 2020-21 financial has come and gone. From the
Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency’s
(GTEDA) point of view, the year was a successful one
amidst the challenges imposed by the Covid-19 pandemic.
On the contrary, the pandemic has taught us to work

smarter and embrace technology to conduct our business.

The agency has played an important role in the work
needed to achieve economic goals, as set out in the LED
strategy and in the priorities, as defined by the Greater
Tzaneen Municipality’s Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
2019-2023. The achievements and challenges are
consolidated GTEDA Annual
Performance report. We are very proud to announce that

summarized in the

for 8 years running, GTEDA has once more demonstrated
financial prudence and has acquired an unqualified audit
opinion. This gives the public confidence knowing that
public funds allocated to GTEDA are used in a responsible
and fruitful manner.

Progress on the implementation of the LED projects is
satisfactory. GTEDA has entered into partnerships with
credible institutions to apply for funding to implement the
projects, empower and upskill project beneficiaries
(unemployed youth, SMMEs and co-operatives).

We cannot neglect the challenges posed by recurrent
business continuity risk. We certainly hope that with the
assistance of Board and the shareholder, this would be
resolved as it affects GTEDA’s Balance Sheet and leverage
needed to attract investors and management of huge
capital and operational projects The revised organisational
structure has key positions that are vacant. This must be
addressed as it poses another risk of lack of full
accountability, and it weakens internal controls as staff
members placed in acting positions beyond the prescribed

period.

As we enter the 2021/22 financial year, we remain resoiute
in carrying out our mandate of economic growth and
investment attraction to ensure the people of Greater
Tzaneen Municipality benefit from the work done by
GTEDA. We remain focused on ensuring that the entity
remains a sustainable, relevant, and efficient entity of the
Greater Tzaneen Municipality.

In conclusioh, | thank the Board which has been an integral
part of this journey from 2015 for the continued support,
guidance, mentoring and playing the oversight role. Without
a capable Board, GTEDA wouldn’t be where it is today. As
management and staff, we executed the mandate to the
best of our abilities, with integrity and a sense of duty. The
work we have achieved together in a short space of time is
sure to set this Agency on a greater path to success. | also
thank Risk and
Compliance committee and the Audit Committee for being

wish to the Council/shareholder,

attentive to the needs of GTEDA and providing leadership
and oversight.

Thank you, fea leboga, ha khensa.

Mr. MW Mulaudzi
Acting Chief Executive Officer



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

-— - o ——

The Board is committed to
ensuring that the Agency is
governed'appropriately. The
Board recognises  the
responsibility of the Agency
to conduct its affairs with

prudence, transparency, accountability, fairness and in a socially and environmentally

responsible manner.

The Agency complies with the provisions as set out in the code of conduct for directors, referred
to in section 93L of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000)
Code of Corporate Governance Principles and Practices as recommended in Companies Act, the
King IV Report on Governance for South Africa 2016.

BOARD STRUCTURE

The general powers of the board of directors
are conferred in the Memorandum of Incorporation and
the Service Level Agreement entered between the
Agency and the Parent Municipality. Terms of
reference for the Board are set out in the Board Charter
which is reviewed annually.

To ensure conflicts of interest are avoided Board
members annually provide a general disclosure of their
personal financial interests in terms of section 75 of the
Companies Act 2008 and are required to declare any
material personal financial interests that they may have
in contracts entered or in any matters to be discussed
at meetings, as well as any changes to their interests
as previously declared.

The Board has adopted a unitary structure and no
individual member of the Board has unfettered powers of
decision making. The responsibility for running the Board
and executive responsibility for the conduct of the
business are differentiated in the Board Charter.
Accordingly, the roles of the Chairperson of the Board
and of the Chief Executive Officer are separated.

The Charter covers the powers and authority of the
Board and provides a clear and concise overview of the

responsibilities and accountability of Board members,
collectively and individually. It includes the policy and
procedures for Nomination and Appointment  of
Committee.

9



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

For the year under review the Board comprised of four (4) non-executive Directors (3
females and 1 male), who are independent as defined by King IV Report on Governance
for South Africa 2016. The Parent Municipality's consideration is given to gender and racial
diversity, as well as diversity in business, geographic and academic backgrounds, in the
process of Directors’ appointment. The particulars of the Directors are set out in the Board
of directors’ section of this Integrated Annual Report. ‘!

Mr. MZ Mawasha
Board Chairperson

Ms MI Moakamela Ms BL Mathebula Mrs. MF Mushwana
Board Member Board Member ' Board Member

MINIMISE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL

The Board operates within the powers conferred on it in the Board RESPONSIBILITY

Charter; bases deliberations, decisions and actions on strategic s ) ) )
The Board is responsible for economic, social and
objectives and ethical and moral values; considers the legitimate i .
environmental performance and reporting, and the
interests of all stakeholders; and aligns its conduct to drive the . ,
Agency has credible and well-coordinated
Agency’s mandate accordingly. ) . )
programmes in respect of social and environmental

issues and stakeholder engagement.
The Agency has a Code of Conduct and ethics which is

communicated internally and externally, and the importance
of ethical behaviour is emphasized in all of the Agency’s

engagements.




COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND GOOD PRACTICE

Board Meetings Attendance:

Initials and Surname  Position Held

Mr. MZ Mawasha Board Chairperson

Ms M|l Moakamela Board Member

Mrs. MF Mushwana Board Member

Ms BL Mathebula Board Member

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is assisted to discharge its duties and
responsibilities by the following Committees:

» Projects and Investments Committee.

» Finance and Risk Committee.

» Human Resource and Remuneration

Committee’

The ultimate responsibility for Board duties and
responsibilities, however, resides in the Board
and it does not abdicate its responsibilities to the
Committees.
The Committees operate within formalized terms of
reference which have been approved by the Board
and which reflect the Agency’s application of the
principles embodied in the King Report,
the statutory requirements of the Company’s Act
and relevant legislation.

For the period under review the Board met on
seven (7) occasions to conduct the normal
business of the Agency. Attendance at these
meetings is summarized in the table below.

Ordinary Special Meetings
Meetings

30of3 _2&4

3of3 40f4

30of3 40f4

30f3 40of4

The terms of reference set out each Committee’s
purpose, membership requirements, duties,

and responsibility. Relevant legislative
requirements, such as those as prescribed in the
Companies Act, are incorporated in the Committee

Charters.

When appropriate, ad hoc committees are formed
to facilitate the achievement of specific short-term
objectives. There is full disclosure, transparency
and reporting from these Committees to the Board
at each Board meeting.




The Projects and Investments Committee is responsible for,

but not limited to the following:

*,
Exd

Performing such other investment and/or fund-
raising related functions as may be determined by
the Board from time to time;

Developing and reviewing the Annual Strategy/Plan
with quarterly milestone.

Assisting the interface with research programmes.
Identifying key information dissemination activities
for project results.
that all
opportunities are identified and assessed and assist

Ensuring economic  development
in balancing conflicting priorities and resources.
Ensuring that viable and sustainable economic
development opportunities are brought to the
attention of potential investors and funders.
Ensuring that interested investors are provided with
all necessary support to ensure implementation of
viable new projects implementation of viable new

projects.

A =

PROJECTS AND INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE (PIC)

TS For the period under review the Projects and Investments
Committee comprised of the following Members

Mr. MZ Mawasha: Chairperson

Ms MI Moakamela: Member
Ms BL Mathebula: Member
Mrs. MF Mushwgna: Member

K2
£

-,
LX)

Developing and reviewing feasibility
studies and business plans that may have
been commissioned by or presented to
GTEDA and packaging these opportunities
in various attractive ways that will appeal
to potential investors.

Reporting on project progress to
stakeholders such as the Greater Tzaneen
Municipal‘ Council, Oversight
Committeé/MunicipaI Public  Accounts
Committee (MPAC), Auditors,

funders etc.

Banks,
Assisting with investment promotional
events or direct sales calls on target
investors; and

Ensuring that all necessary support is
provided to potential investors in terms of
local information, introductions and other |
that
implementation of new projects.

actions will  ensure

speedy




FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE (FRC)

For the period under review the Finance and Risk
Committee comprised of the following Members:

1. Mrs. MF Mushwana: Chairperson

2. Ms Ml Moakamela: Member

3. Ms BL Mathebula: Member

The Finance and Risk Committee is responsible for the The Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA)

consideration of key financial and operating contro! risks conduct external audits for the Agency as

and in particular assists the Board in the following matters: required by the Municipal Finance Management

< Monitoring the financial reporting process. Act (MFMA). Internal audit resources were

»,

% Recommending the appointment of an internal i . . . J
provided via a service provision arrangement with

auditor, determining the terms of engagement and Tladi and Associate Consulting at the

approving fees fom UGl and RoR=aud]it Work recommendation of Management. The internal

UEETtE. auditor does not perform the function or undertake

%+ Monitoring the operation and effectiveness of
the role of management.

internal control systems, including information
technology controls.

The Finance and Risk Committee discharged the

< Overseeing the internal audit function, monitoring functions assigned and complied in all material

i i iewing correcti i . —
Its-gffectiveness,.and reviemingrcorrective.action respects with its mandate and the responsibilities

in refation to findings. prescribed to it in the Terms of Reference.
< Overseeing the implementation and effective

operation of a structured risk management

process; and
% Reviewing and recommending to the Board for

approval the interim and annual financial

statements, the going concern status of the

Agency, interim and final dividends and other

special payments.




HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (HR & REMCO)

- For the period under review the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee comprised of the following
Members:
1. Ms Ml Moakamela: Chairperson
2. Mrs. MF Mushwa}la: Member
3. Ms BL Mathebula: Member

% Succession planning within the organisation.

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee & Reviewing performance assessment of the
assists the Board by overseeing the following Chief Executive Officer and entire
matters; organisation.

4 (Cnsinag™iiiat e Woeney's) diisetans < Recommending appropriate remuneration

Chief Executive Officer are competitively
rewarded for their individual contributions to

packages for employees.
Reviewing the composition of the Board

the overall performance. with

and experience; and

committees respect to  skills

s Ensures that the remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer is set by a committee of

o,
o

Developing sound' corporate governance

>

Board members who have no personal policies.

interest in the outcomes of their decisions

apd wigewilk gjverquenegard terig inerests Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

of shareholders and to the financial and complies in all material respects with its mandate and

canmmensial eak el Ageme: the responsibilities prescribed in its charter.




MANA FE E M

In terms of the Board Charter, the Board is responsible for the
governance of risk, which is delegated to the Finance and Risk
Committee but without abdicating the Board’s responsibility.

Management is responsible for the development and
implementation of the risk management plan in accordance with
the Board approved policy and framework. The Finance and Risk

Committee monitors the risk management process.

Risks are reviewed and prioritised by the Board on a regular basis
and are assessed on an ongoing basis as part of normal
operational management processes. The following eight (8)
Strategic Risks were identified:

1. GOING CONCERN
The entity has an asset deficiency whereby liabilities exceed its
assets, with a current ratio of 0.54; this is a sign of financial
distress and indicates that a company may default on its
obligations to creditors and may be headed for insolvency. The
entity has low asset turnover, and the liability is emanating from
VAT liability on grant received. The entity has an outstanding
liability from SARS amounting to R 2,495,629. to mitigate this risk
the entity should engage the Parent Municipality to assist the entity
by settling off to offset the outstanding liability should SARS
decline the application for debt compromise. SARS indicated that
the process of debt compromise is at a final stage and outcome is

expected to be received.

2. INABILITY TO ATTRACT INVESTMENTS
To Promote a conducive investment climate in the greater
Tzaneen and attract suitable investors, the agency requires capital
investmerts to create an investment climate for socio-economic
and business development, however the agency is struggling to
attract potential investors due to lack of incentives and available
resources. To mitigate the above risk the entity should collaborate
with strategic partnership for implementation of the three (3)
identified projects in the LED strategy.

< Agri business incubator
+ Farmer support Facility
% Waste management Project for SMMEs.

The Incentive policy was approved by Council and will be published
in the Investment Magazine called Unlock Tzaneen.

3. INSUFFICIENT ACCESS BY ENTREPRENEURS TO
SUPPORT, FUNDING AND INFORMATION

The development of small, medium and micro-enterprises
(SMMEs) contributes significantly to job creation, social stability
and economic growth, hence SMMEs must have access to
strategic resources, finance and adequate support to realise their
innovative visions. Entrepreneurship can be an effective vehicle
that stimulates economic growth and reduces unemployment in the
Greater Tzaneen municipal areas. Insufficient access by
entrepreneurs will siow the growth of entrepreneur's sector. To
mitigate the above risk, the entity should facilitate establishment of
an agro processing incubator. 20 clients have been selected to
participate in the incubator programme, 21 SMME'’s have been
registered with CIPC and 12 SMME’s have been assisted with

Annual Returns

4. INADEQUATE ORGANIZATIONAL VISIBILITY AND
POOR ORGANISATIONAL BRANDING

Part of building a strong organisation involves driving up your own
visibility within your organization, industry, and professional
network. The entity should promote rural development and
community outreach. The Stakeholder engagement policy, which
ensures that this is fully achieved, has been developed and
approved by board.



5. INABILITY TO FULLY IMPLEMENT CORE BUSINESS
Core business process states that certain (projects) requires
certain tasks to be performed in sequence, and it must be reflected
in the implementation. In the same manner, any specified steps
associated with a task must also be reflected withih the
implementation. It is import that all parties involved in executing
the process to clearly understand that it is the process that should
be empowered and should not be confused with the organisational
function. To mitigate the above risk the entity should facilitate
project management related trainings to capacitate board to
provide strategies leadership/ oversight role on core business.

6. INSUFFICIENT HUMAN CAPITAL AND LACK OF
STAFF RETENTION

Attracting and retaining skilled and professional staff is a critical in
an organisation, there is strong evidence to suggest that
organisations throughout the world should seek innovative
strategies to attract and retain specialised skills. To mitigate the
above risk the entity must implement the organisational structure
in phases and the board should reconsider the resolution of putting
the implementation of the structure in abeyance.
The process is still on hold pending finalisation of the issue of

going concern and sustainability.

7. POOR STAFF RETENTION

Employees who spend a considerable amount of time in any
organization know it in and out and thus can perform better. They
are well familiar with the company policies and adjustment is never
a problem. Employees ijo come and go find it very difficult to
settle down in a new environment and are thus always in a state
of dilemma. They are not able to perform up to their potential and
eventually the work and the organization suffers.

It is a common observation that employees who spend a good
amount of time in the organization tend to know more about it and
thus contribute effectively. They develop a sense of loyalty
towards their workplace and strive hard to live up to the
expectations of the management. To mitigate this risk the entity
shouid development of staff retention strategy and full
implementation of SALGA collective agreement.

8. INABILITY TO SECURE CONDUCIVE OFFICE SPACE
AND LACK OF ACCESSIBILITY BY DISABLED
PERSONS |

An ideal office brings employees together to collaborate, create
and innovate which ultimately leads to a better product or service;
and provides social interaction for employees. The entity must

secure office in line with the Occupational Health and Safety Act.

CONCLUSION
Fullimplementation of Risk Management framework will assist the
agency to obtain a clean audit opinion if the key controls are
properly adhered and strengthened and that compliance with
regulatory prescripts and legislation is maintained.

GTEDA has an effective risk-based internal audit function,
outsourced to an independent professional firm, whose duties and
responsibilities are defined in the Terms of Reference. The

Internal audit provides necessary assurance to the Board.



HUMAN RE

OURCE

INTRODUCTION

GTEDA has a Chief Executive Officer who operates within an
approved, framework of delegations of authority. He is
supported by the Project Manager; Acting Finance and Risk
Officer; and Acting HR and Administration Officer, for the day-
to-day management. The Board is kept informed on progress
through regular reporting during quarterly meetings, special
meetings and other means as may be agreed as and when
such need arises

The Human Resources Management (HRM) Unit falls within
the Corporate Services division and reports to the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQO). The Unit ensures that progress on
implementation of the organisational objectives is made.

RECRUITMENT

Following the Board resolution to put full implementation of
the approved Organisation Structure in abeyance pending
finalization of the Entity’s going concern and sustainability
issues, the vacancy rate of GTEDA remained at 79%.

TRAINING

Study bursaries for the year under review were awarded
to employees who wanted to further their studies at the
recognised South African higher institutions of learning.
Training programmes that required physical attendance
could not be undertaken due to outbreak of the COVID-
19 virus.

GTEDA pricritised the COVID-19
Management in line with the Disaster Management Act,

training  for

to ensure workplace preparedness

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS
The outbreak of COVID-19 virus necessitated the close
monitoring of the wellbeing of employees. The Human
Resource Management led the implementation
circulars issued by the Department of Public Service
(DPSA)

consideration various laws and regulations such as

and  Administration which took into

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, Disaster
Management Act, Labour Relations Act, Occupational
Health and Safety Act, to safeguard health of the
employees.




HUMAN RESOURCE STATISTICS

For the year under review, the workforce of GTEDA was constituted as:

CA= Contract Appointment

Executive 1 1. . = 1 . _ — | _ _ 1
Management (CA) (CA) (CA)
Senior 1 _ _ L 1 . — —_ — - 1
Management |

Middle _ _ _ [ = 3 _ = — 3 3
Management |

Lower Level _ . [ | 1 _ _ _ 1 2
Disabled _ — - — — = = — == — —

The Municipal Systems Act of 2000, Section 67 requires municipalities to develop and adopt appropriate systems and
procedures to ensure fair, efficient, effective, and transparent personnel administraﬁoh in accordance with the
Employment Equity Act of 1998. However, the Agency currently does not have an approved Employment Equity Plan due
its size, however, to an extent practical, is sensitive to issues of employment equity.




ORGANOGRAM

UllHﬂkcuu\'r
Mulandzi MW PERSONAL ASSISTAN]
(Acting)
\
| 1
MANAGER:CORPORATE o
- SERVICES ' M&';m ADMINISTRATOR:
: i . PROJECTS AND
INVESTMENTS

bl

ACCOUNTANT:
Muodiba ME ¢\cti

ng)

ACCOUNTING
CLERK
Shipalana N6

(\L 4, ug)

GENTBAL ASSISTANT

SENIOR INVESTMENT SENIOR PROJECT
Hiu&‘ﬁb\{\": RESOURCE PUBLIC RELATIONS COORDINATOR: COORDINATOR
OFFICER: OVICER Hlokwe MC fActing)
Makgobatlon MM S
(Acting)

5X PROJECTS
- COORIDINATORS

OHS OFFICER
ADMINISTRATION e
OFFICER !

RECEPTIONIST

Page 19 of 40



PLOYMENT

GTEDA strives to ensure that it employs and maintains a
staff complement consisting of the highest calibre of
individuals who subscribe to its values and are committed to
cjelivering sustainable long-term performance.

GTEDA Organisational Structure is aligned to the South
African Local Government Association (SALGA) TASK Job
Evaluation System to ensure adherence with regulations
governing all municipalities and municipal entities. This
aspires to apply and comply with codes of good practice.

‘Conditions of Service.

All staff was employed in terms of “Total Cost to Employer”
condition, similar to managers in “Section 56/57” of the
“Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 53 of 2000) which
is not consistent with the SALGA Bargaining Council’s
Whereas their conditions of
employment must be similar to those of “South African
Local Government” employees with benefits as defined by
the “Bargaining Council of Local Government”.
Management will take this into consideration during full
implementation of the approved structure and table a

proposal with clear recommendations to Board.

GTEDA Board and employees remain dedicated to quality,
excellence, and continuous improvement. We balance
requests to share information clearly and openly while
respecting the security of confidential and personal

information entrusted to the Agency.
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NISATIONAL F

PROJECTS REPORT AND EVENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21

1. INVESTMENT ATTRACTION

For the 2020/21 financial year, the Agency secured two investors: Funding of R 618 650.00 (Six Hundred
and Eighteen Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Rand) was facilitated from the IDC and Mopani District
Municipality committed funding for installation of an equipped borehole for Vexospark project.

2. INFORMATION SHARING SEMINARS CONVENED

The following 4 information sharing sessions were facilitated during the financial year under

review:

i. Export Training Phase 1 to Phase 3
'GTEDA in partnership with the DTI, SEDA, LEDA, LEDET and GTM successfully hosted the export
training with the aim of training and to empower emerging entrepreneurs to grow their businesses
and become part of the global village under the theme: help entrepreneurs to develop their own
marketing plan as they are getting ready to export.

ii. Mopani District Municipality Youth Economic Imbizo GTEDA in partnership with Mopani
District Municipality successfully hosted the Youth Economic Indaba on the 25th of November 2020
at Mamaila Circuit Office. The event serves as a marketing and promotion initiative to expose young

people to economic opportunities and bridging the gap on economic imbalances.
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iil.

Mopani District Municipality Khauleza Consultative Session — 25 March 2021

GTEDA attended and exhibited during the District’s Private/Business Consultative session held on
Friday, 25t March 2021 at Karibu Lodge. The district presented on development needs of the
district as well as key projects within all the local municipalities, further Presentations were made
by the Department of Tourism, LEDET, LDARD.

3. NETWORKING SESSIONS FACILITATED WITH FUNDING AGENCIES

Due to Covid19 regulations which limited mass gatherings, GTEDA had to come up with innovative ways

of ensuring that SMMEs get access to available funding opportunities. In light of this, GTEDA sourced and

distributed calls for applications from Mopani District Municipality for the SME Support Fund, SEDA TREP

Proramme above sessions. In addition to the above interventions, GTEDA facilitated 3 three networking

sessions with funding agencies, the networking sessions serve as outreach programmes to provide

information and support to Co-operatives and SMMEs on available funding opportunities as well as to

acquire information, processes and qualifying criteria from different funding institutions and government

agencies.

All Covid-19 protocols were adhered to when hosting contact sessions.

4. PARTNERSHIPS SECURED

GTEDA facilitated partnerships with the following organisations:

a.

A partnership between GTEDA and Bokamoso Global Solutions: (signed MOU), a funding
application was submitted to the Agricultural Sector Education Training Authority (AgriSETA) for a
National Certificate in Mixed Farming Systems i.e., crop and livestock. The programme was
targeted at training 159 learners of 33 supervisors and 126 general workers.

A partnership between GTEDA and Hilmark Trading: (signed MOU), which resulted in submission
of a funding application to the Local Government Sector Education Training Authority (LGSETA)
for training of 200 SMMEs on Waste Management. :

A partnership between GTEDA and Regenesys Business School. (signed MOU), a funding
application was submitted to the Transport Educatibn Training Authority for training of women in
Entrepreneurship Development which is a women empowerment programme targeted at
unemployed women (youth) from Tzaneen.

A partnership between GTEDA and Great North Business Incubator. (signed MOU), which
resulted in submission of a funding application to the Department of Tourism, IDC and SEDA for
an establishment of a business Incubator in Tzaneen.

A partnership between GTEDA and Eisowave: (signed MOU) for the establishment of an electric
vehicle manufacturing plant and biodiesel from biowaste.
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5. PROMOTIONAL EVENTS ATTENDED AND EXHIBITED

Four (4) promotional events were facilitated during the financial year. The purpose of hosting promotional
events is to providle SMMEs and Co-operatives a platform to exhibit and showcase their products and

services as well as to expose them to marketing opportunities.

a. FABCO Flea Market — 10 October 2020

’ \ i
> b i -

¢. World Intellectual Property Day (University of Limpopo) — 28 April 2021
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6. SMME AND COOPERATIVES DEVELOPMENT & SUPPORT

6.1. SMME Development and support

GTEDA conducted an intensive monitoring drive whereby site visits were undertaken to SMMEs and
Cooperatives. Two hundred and forty-nine (249) walk-in-clients were offered business advisory services
during the period under review, GTEDA further facilitated the registration of thirty-nine (39) businesses with
the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC). Once the companies have been registered,
they were recorded into the SMMEs Development and Support Database which comprises of 133 SMMEs
operating within Tzaneen. SMVEs are further provided with general business advisory services, access to
funding through information sharing and networking sessions, training, and mentorship, filing of annual
returns was done for 19 businesses.

6.2. Capacity Building for Cooperatives

GTEDA also conducts Capacity Building and skills development for Cooperatives. A monitoring
database was developed to track progress of each Co-operative, the report accounts for 53 Co-operatives
operating within Tzaneen.

a. GTEDA successfully implemented the Services SETA New Venture Creation programme has been
successfully concluded. The programme was implemented through a partnership between GTEDA,
Services SETA and Dithoriso Phepo Hiweko Services. The purpose of the New Venture Creation
(NQF level 2) is to provide a qualification that can form the basis for structured programmes for
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potential and existing entrepreneurs to capitalise on opportunities to start and grow sustainable
businesses that form part of the mainstream economy, enabling the learners to tender for business
opportunities within both the public and private sectors. This qualification is designed for learners
who intend to set up or have already set up own ventures.

The graduation ceremony for 182 learners who completed the New Venture Creation Programme
on Friday, 10th December 2020 at Lenyenye Community Hall. The Ceremony was graced by the
presence of the Honourable Mayor of Greater Tzaneen, Clir Maripe Mangena, Services SETA

National Stakeholders Manager and Provincial Coordinator; Dithoriso Phepo Hiweko Services;
SEDA, Mopani District Municipality, GTM Ward Committee, LDARD, Letaba TVET College and IEC.
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b. GTEDA through a partnership with Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA) facilitated a 2-
day Quality Management System Training for Co-operatives and SMMEs. The training covered
the following aspects: Understanding of Quality Management System (QMS) based on ISO 9001
requirements; Understanding QMS principles; Know and understand planning activities in an
organization, operational requirements, performance evaluation requirements and requirements for
overall improvement in an organization.

c. CCMA Capacity Building Training for SMMEs: 20 SMMES and Cooperatives attended a session
facilitated by the CCMA on 13th to 15th October 2020. The focus of the training was on best practices
and capacity building for employers and managers. The purpose of the training was to teach the
SMMESs on the following outcomes:
¢  To empower entrepreneurs.
¢ To demonstrate knowledge of labor relations laws.

e To help entrepreneurs on how to deal with the day-to-day conflicts between employers and
employees.

e  To broaden the knowledge base on drafting a workplace code of conduct.

7. LED PROJECTS
7.1. Agricultural Business Incubator ‘
The overall objective of the project is to establish a business incubator that creates employment
opportunities and stimulate local economic growth for the marginalized people of Greater Tzaneen
Municipality. GTEDA facilitated an MOU with Great North Business Incubator on the establishment of a
business Incubator in Tzaneen. A funding application was packaged and submitted to the Department of
Tourism, IDC and SEDA. The incubator will among other services, offer skills development programmes
and implementation in areas including but not limited to the following:

- Fruits and Vegetable processing

- Drying facility

- Bakery and deli

- Water purification
Whilst facilitation of funding for establishment of the Agribusiness incubator is underway, GTEDA has
started with the implementation of services that are expected to be offered by the incubation centre i.e.,
GTEDA has identified SMMEs that should be part of the incubation programme and the following trainings
have already been facilitated for the identified SMMEs: Agro processing of mango into atchar, Food Safety
Training conducted by the University of Limpopo.

7.2. Tzaneen Farmer Support Facility

GTEDA has partnered with FABCO for establishment of a farmer support facility in Nkowankowa. The
facility was launched in the first quarter of the financial year followed by a launch of the wholesale market
for farmers on the 16 March 2021, which is available to farmers to sell and exhibit their products. The facility
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will assist farmers with input support, mechanization support, training and market intelligence. GTEDA was
further involved in the establishment of an agreement between FABCO and Mahindra for mechanization
support to local farmers. Through the partnership, Mahindra availed tractors for this purpose.

2~

GTEDA further partnered with Edgoflex for the implementation of a training programme for 300
beneficiaries within the Greater Tzaneen area. The Project aims at acceleration of job placements for
unemployed youth, women and persons living with disabilities as well as the repositioning of emerging
agribusinesses and vendors for more profitable participation in the agricultural value chain. A funding
proposal was developed on the abovementioned project and submitted to the National Skills Fund.

A farmer consultative forum for agricultural SMMEs and Cooperatives was successfully hosted on 09 June
2021 at Mashuti Lodge. The session was hosted by Mopani District Municipality in partnership with local
Municipalities, GTEDA, FABCO, SEDA, Department of Agriculture as well as other stakeholders. GTEDA
coordinated farmers’ exhibitions during the session which was intended to expose farmers to market
opportunities. The forum discussed among others, the establishment of a temporary governance framework.
for organized agriculture in the district as well as to review the strategies to grow the sector, Framework for
District Development Model as a blueprint for agricultural development in the district as well as issues
relating to Climate Smart Agriculture.
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Mogoboya Masilo (MN enterprise) and Linda Nghatsana (Exillite499c)
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7.3. Waste Management support programmes for SMMEs

GTEDA packaged and submitted an application for funding to the LGSETA for a learnership on
Environmental Practice for 200 unemployed youth. The application was submitted in partnership with
Hilmark Trading (Training Provider).

Management established a relationship with TWS to embark on a manufacturing project using bio waste.
At the close of the financial year, the parties were in the process of developing Terms of References for

development of a feasibility study for this initiative.

GTEDA successfully conducted Waste Management training for 15 participants. The training was held over
a period of 3 days, from 19 to 21 May 2021 at Relela Community Hall. The purpose of the training was to
provide skills for SMMEs and Co-operatives that operate or aspire to establish waste management
businesses. The training involved understanding the most important elements integrated in sustainable
waste management as well as to give support and guidance to attendees on funding opportunities available

to the sector.

=

oterky = —————
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8. VEXOSPARK

Funding was secured from the IDC for the implementation of outstanding tasks i.e., erection of a palisade
fence, roofing of centre space, installation of parking bay and a security house. GTEDA worked closely
with Vexospark to ensure that funds are utilised as per the funding agreement. The Greater Tzaneen
Municipality supported the project with a septic tank due to water challenges in the area, the municipality
continues to support the project by providing 24-hour security personnel at the centre, to safeguard the
property as well as to limit vandalism. Mopani District Municipality approved the request from GTEDA and
installed an equipped and tested borehole facility.
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GTEDA together with IDC and Vexospark successfully launched the Tzaneen Vexospark Digital College
on the 15% of April 2021, which was graced by among a variety of stakeholders and dignitaries, the
presence of GTEDA Board Chairperson, Matome Mawasha, Minister of Communications and Digital
Technologies, Stella Ndabeni-Abrahams, the Mayor of GTM, Mr. Maripe Mangena as well as Ms Christina
Mohale on behalf of the Executive Mayor of Mopani District Municipality.

The College offers among others, the following courses which are targeted at learners from the age of four
years and above:
» Robotics and Coding — for learners from pre-school to grade 9.
Design Thinking — for learners from grade 5 to grade 12.
Digital Library — for all school learners.
Computer literacy
Digital Technology Programme

vV V. V V VY

SheMeansBusiness programme — this is a digital marketing programme for business owned by woman
around Limpopo which teaches about principles of marketing their business.

> She Will Connect Programme - this programme is aims to teach girls and women about entrepreneurial
Skills online safety, Computer basic Skills and website design.

Vexospark further signed a training contract with the University of Limpopo and the National Electronic
Media Institute of South Africa (NEMISA) for training of 1400 individuals in Limpopo on Microsoft Digital
Technology Programme which is an important skill in any business. The purpose of the training is to give
knowledge and skills needed to enter the digital space, to empower, develop skills of participants to
contribute to improved productivity and efficiency in the workplace as well as to respond to challenges of
the economic environment.

Due to the expected high number of enrolments under this programme and with the guidance by

Management, Vexospark is cc;nsidering establishing satellite offices in the four clusters of the Greater
Tzaneen area in order to achieve the target of 1400 participants.
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Official Launch Pictures

—S{spparted by:
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4.2, ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

The role of GTEDA in the Greater Tzaneen Municipality is to facilitate socio-economic development and
investment attraction in order to grow the local economy and stimulate job creation, this function is
conducted by the Project Management Unit. The performance results of the financial year under review are
presented below as captured under the SDBIP using the GTM online reporting tool called Action Assist.

Procedure for performance reporting during 2020/21 Financial Year

GTEDA together with GTM are abreast of technological systems used to accurately and reliably report
performance information, the “Action Assist” system is at the epitome of capturing, verifying  and
auditing performance information of GTEDA to ensure that the correct  information is reported, and an
unbiased performance of the agency is shared with stakeholders and the community. The actual
performance reported on the system, and presented in this report, has been audited by Auditor General
South Africa (AGSA) and has been colour coded as follows:
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Annual Financial Statemenis for the year ended 30 June 2021
Accounting Authority’s Responsibility and Approval

The Accounting Authority are required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 58 of 2003), to maintain adeguate
accounting records and are rasponsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. 1t is the responsibility of the Accounting Authority to ensure that the annual financial
statements fairly present the siaie of affairs of the Municipal Entity as at the end of the financial year and the resulis of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors will be engaged to express an independent
opinion on the annual financial statements and will be given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annuai financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP} including any interpretations, guideiines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accouniing pelicies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The Accounting Authority acknowledge that they ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established
by the Municipal Enlity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong conirol environment. To enable the
Accounting Authority to meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Authority sets standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framewacrk, sffective accounting procedures and adequate sagregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable ievel of risk, These controls are monitored throughout the Municipal Entity and all employess are required to
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuwring the Municipal Entity's business is conductad in a manner that in ail
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Municipal Entity is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Municipal Entity. While operating risk cannat be fully
eliminated, the Municipal Entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behaviour are appiied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Accounting Authority are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the annual financial statemeants. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasconable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Authority have reviewed the Municipal Entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2022 and, in the
fight of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Municipal Entity has or has access to
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Municipal Eniity is wholly dependent on the Greater Tzaneen Municipality for continued funding of operations. The
annual financial statements are prepared on the basis tha: the Municipal Entity is a going concern and that the Greater
Tzareen Municipality has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the Municipal Entity.

red on the going concern basis, were
on its behalf by:

The annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 51, which r‘avp bs
aperovad by ihe Accounting Authority on i AuiCeidT 2T

Actmg Chief Executive Officer Chairperson




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Regisiration number 2007/008144/07)
Annual Financial Statements for he year sivied 30 Juae 2021

Accounting Officer's Report

The Accounting Officer submits his repori on the annual financial siatements of Greater Tzaneen Economic: Development
Agency for the year ended 30 June 2021. ‘

\ !
1. Nature of business

Gresier Tzaneen Economic Developrnent Agency (Pty) Lid is & Municipal Entity incorporsied i the Republic of Souih Africa

established in feras of the Companies Al by ihe Greater Tzaneen Municipality (GTM) with the assisiancs of ibe Industnial

Deveiqmm Corporation (IDC) i order to project manage urban and rural ruﬁrﬂuﬁaﬂn of the GTM's =iy with 2 view
tc promote economic development anid inveshent afiraciion

2.  Review of financial results and asiiniies

The fnancial statements hawe been prepared in accordance with South African Sialements of Generally Recognised
Acxounting Practice (GRAP) including any infergwetations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accouniing Standard
Board.

Gresier Tzaneen Municipality approved and allocated a budget of R § 9651 108 o GTEDA a5 grant funding for ife financial
year under review, compared io R B 148 460 ihet was allocated for piior year. The owerall aciual expenditure amounds 1o
P8 183 515 which is 80.97% oi ihe budget in isrms of spending pattermn; ihe expenditure includes project nosis of

R456 621 a5 compared o R 1 592 690 for prior year. Employee and board member cosis aymooni to R 4 509 728 as
compared io R 4 709 049 i ihe prior year,

The: Agency generated a surplus of R (1 008 B75) as compersd o a surplus of B (ﬂ“ﬂ 660) for prior year, this was mainly
g fo io an increase in grants and subsidies.

3. Going comcersy

We dizwr attention io the fact thai at 30 June 2021, the Municipal Entity had accumulsisd deficits of R (1 364 228) and that
the Municipal Entity's total liabilities exceed iis assets by R (1 354 128).

Tree annual financisl statements hawvs besn prepared on the basis of sccounding policiss applicable to a going concaim. This
basis presumes that fungs will be available to finance fviuce operations and thet ihe realisation of asseis and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitmenis will occur in the ordinary course of business,

The ability of the Municipal Entity to continue as a going concain is dependent on a number of factors. The mosi significant
of these is that the Accounting Officer continues i procure funding for ihe ongoing operations for ihe Municipal Entity.
Furthermore, ihe Greater Tzaneen Municipal Councel has commitied fo fund the Entity by approving & muiii-year budget
for the coming iiwse fiscal years, and GTM has provided 2 comfort letier as 2 commitment o fund and zssist the entity in
paying ihe YAT liability

Provision for ¥AT payable bas baen made, this is as result of the entity not declaring output VAT on grants receivable from
its funders i.e the Graalsy Tzanesn Municipality and indusirial Developmem Corporation. VAT returms from 2014 to 2017
financial years were reviewed and objsctions wers lodged on the assessmenis raised by SARS. Following SARS audit, ihe
entity's VAT liability has been reduced from R6 853 115 in RZ 495 829 by SARS. Tolal liability cwed o SARS ai year-end is
R 2703756 {2020: R 2520877)

GTEDA continires to work with SARS to resolve the outstanding obligation, an application for = debi compromise for the
amount of R 2 495 629 has been submitted to SARS as another alternative for resolving the going concern situation.

4. Contributed capital

There wers no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the Municipal Entity ¢
Authorised ordinary shares are 1000 and the issued ordinary shiares are 100.

1 the year under review. The

5. Subsequent events

The Accouting Officer and Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year
and confirm that there are no subsequent events that could affect the 2020/2021 annual financial statements.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Annual Financial Statements for the year snded 30 Juns 2021

Accounting Officer's Report

6. Directors : i
The directors in office st ihe date of this repoit arel |
i 7. Mawasha (Chairperson)

M_F. Mushwana

M1 Moakamela
8.1. Mathebula

GTEDA Board oi Directors were appointed on & Fixed Term Contract of five (5) years, effective from 01 July 2016 ending 30
Juns 2021. Greater Tzaneen Municipal Council resolved o extend their Term of Office to a further six (6) months (endng

31 December 2021) due io ifv: National Lockdowm

7. Controlling entity

The Municipal Endity’s controlling entity is the Grester Tzaneen Municioaliy.

8. Auditors

Auditor Genesal of South Africa (AGSA) will u:l'ltn.r in office for the newi financial period.

9. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Except for ihe fruitless and wasieiul expenditure disclossd in Noie 28 io the financial statements, ihe Chisi Executive

Officer and directors ars nof aware of say other fruifless and wasteful expenditure which have been incurrsd during the year
unger resie

10. brregular expenditure

The Chief Executive Officer and Dlirecines are noi ssase of any iregular sxpendiirs incuwred duiing the vear under review.
11. Corona Virus (COVID 19) _

Towanis the end of March 2020, the Republic of Souih Africa was placed under a nationwide lockdown as = results of the:
Covid-1%9 implications and as part of the Government's efforts io flatten the curve and conizin the infection and ihe spread oif
the global pandemic virus. '

Greater Tzansen Economic Development Agsncy (Ply) Lix remains committed sind doing its best to support the goveimimeni’s

effori o cawb the spread of ihe virus by implementing Cowid-12 preventative measuies as per guidslines issued by the National
Depanment of Health.

The global spvead of coronavirus (COVID-19) negahve!y affecisd GTEDA by the unprecedented discuption of wosking
avangemenis and business operations. The Cowit-19 epidemic has resulted in significant changes, requiring expendiiures for
which no budgetary preparation had been mede. Management had to improvise some budget fism o cater for COVID-18
related expenditure, since  GTEDA did not received any additional funds as indicated by ihe finance minister in ths
rary Budget Review date une 2020; that an amount of 220 billion will be made available to the municipalities
and entities in response i the COVID-12 pandamic.

12. Events after reporting date

The directors are not aware of any material event which occured after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.




Report of the auditor-general to Limpopo provincial legislature and the
council of Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

| Report on the audit of the financial statements

= |
Qpinion

1. | have audited the separate financial statements of the Greater Tzaneen Economic
Development Agency (Ply) Ltd set out on pages xx to xx, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2021, statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets and statement of cash flows and statement of camparison of budget
information with actual information for the year then ended 30 June 2021, as well as the notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significani accounting policies.

in my opinion, the financial statements presant fairly, in all material respecis, the financial
position of the entity a5 at 30 June 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Actouniing Practice
(Standards of GRAP) and the fequirernents of the Municipal Finance Management Act of
South Africa, 2003 (4ci No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA), Companies Aci, 2008 (Aci no. 71 of 2008)
and the Division of Revenue Aci, 2020 (Aci No. 1 of 2020) (DoRA).

[\~

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (iSAs). My
responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the audiior-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s repori.

4. | am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code
of ethics for professional accountants and paits 1 and 3 of the International Code of Eihics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) of the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the I=SBA codes.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropsiaie to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

8. | draw attention io note 1.3 and accounting officer report to the financial statements, which
indicates that the entity incurred an accumulated deficit of R1 364 128 as at 30 June 2021 and,
as of that date the entity's current liabilities exceeded its total assets by R 1 364 128. A5 stated
in the accounting officers report, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in the accounting officer’s report, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.



Emphasis of matter
7. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respeci of this maties.
Restatement of corresponding figures

8. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the correspoinding figures for 30 June 2019
were restated as a result of an etvor in the financial statements of the munricipal entity at, ana
for the yasr ended, 30 June 2021.

Fruitless expenditure

§. As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, the aniily incurred fruitless and wiasteful
expenditure amounting (0 R13 654 in the year under review due to penalties and interest on
VAT (Walue Added Tax) returns.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Standards of GRAP and the requiremenis of the MFMA, the
Compenies Act and DoRA, and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
missiziemeni, whether due to fraud or efror.

11. In preparing the financial statements, the aceounting officer is responsible for assessing the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to
going concarn and using the going concain basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity oi to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable sssurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole azre free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errorr, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not 2 guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect 2
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expecied fo
influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of financial statements.

—-—
G2

. A further description of my responsibiitties for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor's report

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 {Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and

the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report material findings on
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives



presented in the annual periormance report. | performed procedures to identify findings but not
o gather evidence to express assSurance. |

15. My procedures address the reporied performance information, which must be based on the
appwowed performance planning documents of the eatity. | have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning
documents. My piocedures also did not exténd to any disclosures or assertions relating to
planned performance strategies and information in respeci of future periods that may be
included as part of the reported perfonmnance: information. Accovdingly, my findings do not
extend to these matters.

16. | evaluated the usefulness and rsliability of the: reported periormancs information in
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objectives praseniad in
the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 30 June 2020:

17. | performed procedures to determine the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. Iperformedfurtherpro'cedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
perioimance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

18. | did not | did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reporied
performance information for objective 1: Economic growih.

Other matters
19. | draw attention to the matters below. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matters.

Achievement of planned targets

20. Refer to the annual performance repori on pages xx to xx for information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the
ungualiied conclusions sxgressad on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information in paragraph 2 of this report,

Adjustment of material misstatements

21. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were on the reported performance information of economic
growth. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, | did not raise any material
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information



Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

22. In accordance with the P&24 and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibiliiy to report material findings on the complisnce of the entity with specific matters in
key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gaiher evidence to
express assurance. [

23. The material findings in respect of the comphznce criteria for the applicable subject matters aire
as follows:

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports |

24. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. ‘

Material misstatements of corresponding current assets, cofrasponding current liabilities and
corresponding accumulated surplus identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statement were corrected and/or the supporting records were provided subsequenily, resulting
in the financial statements ieceiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure Management

25. Reasonable steps were not taken to pisvent fruitiess and wasteful expenditure to the amount
of R13 654 == disclosed in note 26, in contravention of section 95(d; of the MFMA. Interest was
incurred due to late payimernis of statutory fees

Other information

23. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the
financial statements, the auditor’'s report and those selected objectives presented in the annual
performance repori that have been specifically reporiad in the auditor’s repori.

24, Gur opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reporisd perfoimance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do nof express an
audit opinion or any form of assuwrance conclusion thereon.

25. In connection with our audit. cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected objectives presented in the annual performance repori, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

i Internal control deficiencies

26. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the opinion.




27. The accounting officer did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding financial
and periormance reporting and compliance and related internal conirols.

28. The annual financial statements and annual perforrmance regort contained numerous
misstatements mainly due %o a lack of financial monitoring and review. This could be as a result
of lack of segregation of duties and internal reviews within the eniify. :

l
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Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain pvoiessional sceplicism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures periornmead on reported pesiormance information for selected objectives and on the
municipal sniity’s compliance vith resgect to the selected subjeci matters.

1.

Financi?l statements I
InadditionMmyrespusibiiyhrihawdnoﬂneﬁnamidmﬂmlsaﬁm in this

!‘\.’)

auditor’s report. | also:
o idenfify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuliing from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that aie appropriate in the cicumnsizances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the eniiiy’s internal control

evaluate the appropriateness of accouniing policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the nting officer

conciude on the appropriateness of the accounting ofﬁeest::f the going concarrs
basis of accouniing in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncetiainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the to continue as = going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in
my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material
unceriainty or, if such disclosures are inatdequaie, to modify my opinion on the financial
statements. My conclusions aie based on the information available o me at the date of
this auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a municipal eniity to
cease operating as a going concern ‘

evaluzie the overall presentisijon, structure and content of the finainicial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements repireseni the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presenisiion

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinicsn.

Communication with those charged with governance

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also confirm to the accounting officer that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may



reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my indspendence and, where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards apglied.



Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Regisiration numbes 2007/008 124/07)

Annual Finandal Sistements for the vear ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020
Assets 1

!
Curnerd Asseds
Receivables from excharige transactions 3 53 9 424
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 3421 148 21
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 1235024 10 0186

‘ 1292 411 251 661
Non-Current Assets
Properly, plant and equipment & 278 743 156 859
Intangible ssssis ¥ 14 023 18 827

290 758 173 686

Total Assets 158838177 435 347
Liabilit
Curreni Lishilities
Payabies from sachange transachons 8 243 549 287 &713
SARS 9 2 703 756 2 520877

‘ 2947305 2808 350
Total Liabilities 2 947 305 2 Bi& 350
Net Assets (1364 128) (2 373 003)
Contributed capital 10 100 100
Accumulated daiicii (1364228) (2373103)
Total Net Assels (1364128) (2373 003)

14
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Statement of Financial Performance

Fujures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

| 1

| !
Revenue from exchange transsctivng { ‘
Uit ncome 29 43 558 i
Interest iecaived - nvesiment 1 12 488 30 700
Total reveviue from exchange transactions 63084 30 700
Revenue from mon-exchange transactions
Tratwsier revenue
Grants and subsidies 12 £ 961 106 8 148 460
Discrefionary grant received from Services SETA (conwifiional grant) - 203 261
Adirinisiration snd project management cosis frosn Services SETA 13 . 73237
Grant received - LG SETA 148 200 68 640
Fotal revenue from non-exchange transactions 9 109 306 9 191 598
Total revenue 1 9172 3% 9 222 298
Expenditure i
Employee related cnsis 1 14 4133538 4211999
Remuneration of bowrd memnbess 15 376 192 497 050
Consulting fees 558 124 450 762
Depreciation znd armoriisation 16 5% 700 66 090
Genersl expenses 17 1871805 1339 390
| azse rentals on operaling kease 7105 607 657
mqm cosis 18 456 621 1 582 690
Loss on scrapping of suseis 5332
Total expenditure 8 163 515 8775638
Surplus for the year 1008 875 445 560




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
{Registration number 2007/00814£/07)
#rnual Financial Statements for the: year ended 30 Juna 2021

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Note Contributed Accumulated Total =i
Figwes m Rand 1 capital deficit assais
Opening balance as previcusly reported ; 100 5267032 6267132
Adjustments ‘
Priov year sajusimends ;_ 25 - 3447 269 3247 269
Balance at 01 July 2019 as resfated” 100 (2819763) (2812663)
Changes in n&t assais
Surplus for ihe waor : - 446 850 445 G660
Total changes ! - 445 G50 448 630
Balance at 01I July 2020 100 (2 372 103) (2 373 003)
Changes n n=f asseis
Surplus o e year ‘ . 1 008 875 1008 875
Total changes - 1 008 875 1 008 875
Balanwe 8i 30 June 2021 100 {1 364 228) (1 364 128)
Note 15




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Repisirsinon number 20071008 144/07) |
Annual Financial Statements for #he yesr ended 30 June 2021

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand hoie(s) 2021 200

3 ;

Cash flows from operating activities ;

Receipts

Sale of goods aivd services 43 596 -

Grants aind moveineni in trade and offwy receivables G 208 584 G THl) 428

Interest moome 12 488 30 700

| 5272648 L7791 128

Payments

Erployes costs and bossd mamber cosis (€5 728) (4709049

Supplicrs (3454 801) (5250841)
(7964 529) (9999890)

Net cash flows from operating activities 19 1308 119 (208 762)

Cash flows from imvesting activities

Burcdiase of property, plant and equipment 6 (177 111) (164 452)

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1131008 (313 214)

Cash @i cosh equivalents =i iie beginning of the year 104 018 417 230

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 1235 024 104 015

1
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(Regisiretion number 2007/008144X07)
Annual Financial Statements for the yezv ended 30 Juns 2021

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approweti Virements  Fawd Budget Actual smounis  Difference Rederence
budget on comparable Hobwesn final
E basis budget and
Figiees i Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Diher incowe - - A% 506 43 598 Note
Interest received - invesiment . - - 15 488 19488  joie 11
Total revenue from exchange - - 63 084 83 084
tranvsachions
Rewenne from non-exchange
ransactions
Transfer isvenus
Govemment grants & subsidies 8951 106 8 961 108 8961 106 - Mok 12
Grant received - LG SETA - . 148 200 148 200
Total revenue from non- 8961 106 8961108 9109398 148 200
exchange irsnsactions
Total revenue 8961 106 - 2 881 108 9 172 3% 211 284
Expenditure
Employee rekated cosis {4 351 398) 24720  (4336678) (4 133 538) 2032142 pode 14
Remuneration of board (674 100) 288 895 (385 204) (376 192) 9012  Noie 15
members
Depreciation and amortisation (87 555) - (87 555) (53 700 33855  Note 18
Lease rentals on operating lease (894 808) (177 252) (1672 060Q) (707 10%5) 364 955  poge 17
Repairs and mainienance (5 500) 3000 (2 500) - 2500
Consulting fees (420 574) (19 247) (439 871) (558 124) (118.283)  Note 17
Interest expanses (4 524) 3 000 (1524) . 1524  Noie 17
Projec cosi (1047 786) 181 656 (8886 130) (456 621) 429509  Note 17
General Expenses (2277 647) (583 164) (2870 811) (1871 905) 998906  Noie 17
Total expenditure (9773 892) (308 441) (10082 333) (8 157 183) 1925 150
Operating surplus (812786)  (308421) (1121227) 1015207 2136434
Impairment loss . - - (6 332) (6 332)
Surplus / (Deficit) before (812 786) (308 441)  (1121227) 1008875 2 130 102
taxation
Actual Amount on Comparable (812 786) (308 441) (1121 227} 1008 875 2130102

Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Regisirstion number 2007/00814247)
Annual Financisl Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis
Approved Virements  Final Budget Aciual amounis  Difference Reference
budget on comparable heiween final
| basis budget and
Figures in Rand aciual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Asseis
Receivables from exchange . 573 966 53 968 Note 3
HEET o e T
Receivables from nor-exchantg: - - 3424 3421 Note 4
ransachions
Cash and cash cquivalenis 3 235 024 1235024 Note 5
- - 1292 411 1292 411
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant 2nd equipment 235 000 235 000 216 T43 44 743 Noie 6
Intangible assets - i ® 14023 14023 Note 7
235 000 235 060 290 768 55766
Total Assets 235 000 235 000 1583177 1348177
Lialbilities
Current Liabilities
Payables irom exchange - 243 548 243 548 Noie §
transactions
YAT payable . 2703 756 2703758 Mote 9
- 2947 305 2 94F 305
Total Liabiiities - - 2 947 305 2 947 305
Net &ssets 235 S0 235 000 (1364 128) (1 593 128)
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to
Owners of Controliing Entity
Contributed capital - 165 100 Noi= 10
Reserves
Accumulated deficit - - (1384 228) (1364228)

Total Net Assets

(1 364 128)

(1 354 128)

Refer ic Note 29 for rationale for variances above 10%.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Aglency (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2007/008124/4)7)
Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Juns 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Slhtement: |

The annual financial statements have been giepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section sn(a)dﬁnuum
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003)!

These annual financial siafernenis have been prepared on sn sconssl basis of accounting and zre in accordance with
hisiorical cosi corvention as the basis of rrmmwﬁ unless specified oiheiwise. |

|
Asseis, kabilities, revenues snd expensas w:a not offset, except where offsetting is efther requirsd or permitted by 2
Standard of GRAP.

A summary oi the significant accounting policies, which have been consistenily applied in the preparation of these sanusl
financial statements, ase disclosed balow.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annusl inancal sisiements ars gieseniad in South African Rand, wiiidh is ihe functional currency of the Municipal
Endity.

1.2 Rounding
A4 financisl figures hawe been rounded off ‘ta ihe nearesi Rand.
1.3 Going conceyr: assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation ihaf ihe Municipal Entity will comiinue io
operate 55 a going concarn for the foreseesble fufurs.

The anmusl financial siatemenis have been prepared on he basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be avaitstle to financs future operations and thai the realisaiion of assets and seillermnent of
liabilities, contingent obligations 2nul commitments will ncoar in the ordinary course of business,

1.4 Significant judgments and sowrces of estimation uncertainty

In preparing ihe annul financial statements, management is reqguired o make estimaies and assumpiions that affect e
amounis represented in the annual financial siziemenis and relaied disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be matenial to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade receivables and loans and receivables

The Municipal Entity assesses its trade recaivables and loans and receivables for impairmend ai ihe end of sach reporting
period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in suwplus or deficit, the suipius makes judgments as
io whether ihars is observable data indicating & measurable decreass in the estimated future cash flows from & financizl
asssi

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis. bassd on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions snd ofher indicators present at the reporting daie that
correlate with defaults v the portfolio. These annual ioss raiios ave applied io loan balances in ihve portfolio and scaled to
ine estimated loss emergence pariod.

Fair value estimation
The carrying value iess impairment provision of trace receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair

values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is astimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows a:i e current market interest rale is available to the Municipal Entity for similar financial instruments.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Age n;cy (Pty) Ltd
{Registration nuimiber 2007/008144/07)
Annual Fmzncal Statements ior the year ended 30 Juns 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgments and sources of Fsll'nd)on uincertainty (continued) 1

Impaisment testing |

The Municipal Enfity rewiews and tests the canfying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
e carrying amoust Wy 1ot be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are
largely independent of cash flows of oither asseis and kabilifies. i there are indications Hhat impairment imzy have occurred,
Mhmpmpaedofexpededﬁweraxm ilowess for each group of asseis. Expected future cash flows usad i
determing the value in use of goodwill and assets are inherently uncertain and could matenally change over time.
They are significantly affected by a number of mmmmmm%
sconaenic Eacioes such as exchange rafes inflation mdevesi

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Properiy. plant and equipment are tangible non-cunrent asseds (inciuding infrastructure assets) ihat aie held for use in the
production o supply of guods or serwices, rental 1o oifees, or for administrative purposes, and are sxpecied o be usad
during nmere ihan one pevind.

The cost of a0 liern of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an assel when:
*  itis probable that future sconcinic benefits o sevvice potential associated with the iteim will flow i the Municipal
Enfity; and |
+ e eost of ihe e can be measured rebably. i

Proweriy, plant and equiprent is initially measured at cost.

The: cost of an e of properdy, plant 2nd egquipment is ihe purchase price and oifier cosis affribuiable i bring the assed o
ifwe location s condition necsssary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts sinl rebaies are deducied in arriving &8 the cost

Whete ain asset is acquired through 5 non-exchange transaction, iis cosi s its fair value as ai date of scguisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-rmoneizy assel of monetary assets, or 2
combinsiion of monetary and hon-moneizry assets, ihe asset acquired is initially measured af fair value (the cosi). If the
acouired fism's fair value was noi determinable, if's deemed cosi is the carmmying amouni of ihe assel(s) given up.

When significant componeriis of an liein of property, plent and equipment have different useful lives, ihey are accounicd fiow
as separate iiems (major componenis) of property, plani and eguipmeni.

Costs include cosis incuned initially to soguire or construc an item of property, plant and equipment and cosis incured '
subsequently to add io, replace part of, or service ii. If a replacement cost is recognised in the camying amouni of an ilem of
property, plant and equipment, the canrving amouni of the replaced part is derecognised.

Recognition of cosis in the carying amount of an iiem of property, plant and equipment ceases wihen the liem is in the
location znd conditicqy necessary for it to b= capable of operating in ihe manner iniended by management.

Major sgare parts and standby equipment which see expected to be usad for more than one peried arz included in property.
plant s equipment. In addition, spave parts 2nd standby eguipment which can only e usad in connection vwilt: an e of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for a property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection custs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet
tha recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property. plant and equipment. 2oy
remaining inspection casts irom the previous inspection as= derecognised.

. olant and equi is carried at cost less accumulated ion and impairment iosses,
eq pa
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.5 PFroperty, plant and equipment tconﬁmnt.l?

Tive useful livess of items of properiy, plant and eqiipment have been assessed as follows: lt

|
Item | Depreciation mathod Awverage useful life

Furiivre sl fixtures Straight e ¥ - 10 yeans
Office equipment Sirgigihs ine 3-5 years ‘
Cormgeder equipment | Straight e 3-Syears |

The residual value, and ihe useful ife and depreciation method of each assel are ewiewed 2t the end of aach iegbiing
date. If the expectations difier from previous esiimains, ihe change is accounted @« as @ change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an i of property, plant anvd equipment with a cosi that is significant in refsiion to e total cost of the iem s
depreciated separately.

The: depreciation charge for each panod is recognised in surplus o deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
anoiher assed

1.6 Intangible assets

An pssed s Wendifiable if i sither
. is separable, i.e. rxmpabieofbehgseﬁaaredordmdedﬁunanemtymdmﬁ‘ transferred, licensed, ra*tedu'
exchanged, efiher individually or together with a related contract. identifiable asssis or liability, regardiess of
whether the antity intends io do S0, of
*  arises from binding srrangements (including rights from coniracis), regardiess of wihether those nights ae
iransierable or separable frum the Municipal Endity or from oifer rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arsngament ihat confers similar rights and obligations on the parties i il as if il were
in the foam of & conifract.
Ay intangible asset is recognisad when:

. ii is probable that the expedied fulure econoimic benefits or senvice potential thit sve attributable io ihe ssset will

flow io the Municipal Entiiy, and ‘

. the cost or iziv value of the sssel can be measwed reliably.
The Municipal Eniity assesses ihe probability of expected future econuimic benefits or sevvics potential using rezsonable
ang supportable azsumplions ihai represent management's best estimaie of the sei of economic conditions iiai will exist
over ihe useiul life of the asssi

Véhers an intangible ssset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, iis iniiiad cosi ai ibe date of acquisition is
measured af iis fair vaiue 23 i thai daie.

Expenditure on research (of on ihe research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expenss wihen i is nowred
Intangible ssseis are caied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impainment losses.

The amortisation geriod and the amortisation method for intangible ass=is are reviewed at each repoiiing date.

Internally generaiad goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write dowm the intangible ssseis. on a straight line basis, fo their residual values as follows:

item Useful life
Website development 3 years

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible assats is included in surplus or deficit when the assetis
deracogmsed (unless the Standard of GRAP on lsases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).
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(Registration musmbey 2007/008144/07]
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.7 Finaactal rFlnlnenB |

A financial instrunbent is any contract that pives fise fo a financial assel of one enilly &nd 2 financial liability or o residual
mdmm

ﬂtemwthsedcoﬁofaﬁmuda&eetuhmxxﬂiﬂyhihemmﬁ auﬂud\dehnauias.sﬁmmwrs
ressned s niial recognition minus principal repayments, plus of minus the cumulative amortisation using e effeciie
interest method of zny difference between ihiai -iﬁaiundwniﬂemﬂymur& arwd tninues any reduction (directly o

through ihe twofmmtsamuﬁ)wmmmum !
f

Derecognition is the removal of = pfmmw:a&mawwiw from an entity’s statement of
fl'mudp«:mam_

Aduhmvensﬁw-r)ﬁw-ﬂwo«uﬂufumadwalﬁrmofthewﬁmmrd'laraderm
e It requires no mnitial net nvestment or an mitial net ivesimend that is smaller fhen woulld be required for other
types of conizncis that would be expedted o heve a2 similar response o chanees in merkei faclors.
¢ ltis sattled at a future date.

The effective interest method is & method oi calculating fhe aavoriised cost of & financial asset o & financial kabdlity (o
group oi financial assets o+ financial liabilities) and of allocating the inferest ncuie oF inderesi expense over the relevand
periot. The effective inferest raie is the rade that exadly discounts estirnaied future cash payments or receipts through e
expected life of the finandal instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the carmying amount of the financial
asset or financial kability. When caiculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall gsti cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and si options) but shall not consider future
credi losses. The caloulztion includes all fees and points paid or received hetwesn parties in the confradi that are an
integral pasi of the effective interest 1at= (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenme from Exchange Transactions), iransacion
costs. anvd all vihey premiums or discounts. There is 2 presumption ihei the cash flows and the expecled liie of & group of
similar financia! instruments can be estiraaied reliably. However, in those rae cases wihen it is not possible #o reliably
estiraaie ihe cash flows or ihe expected life of = financial instrument {ov group of financial instruments), the entity shall use
fhe: confraciusl cash flows over the iull confractusl fvm of the financial insfrurnent {or group of financial instruments).

Fair walue is ihe amound for wihich an assed could be exchanged, or 2 liability settled, befween knowledgeable willing parties
i s ann's length iransacion

A ﬁnanual assei s
cashy;
. & residual aterest of another entity; or
»  acontractual right io:
- receive cash or another financial assat from another enfity; or
- exchange financial assete or financial Eabilities with anoiher entity under condifions thai are polentially
favourable o the entity.

A financizl liabifity is any kability ihat is a contractual obligation 2o

. deliver czsh or anviher financial assei ic another entity; o

»  exchange financial asseis o financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourabie io ihe entity.
Classificati

The Municipal Entiy has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as refleciad on ihe face of the
statement of financial position o7 in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivable from exchange transaclions Financial asset measured ai amortised cos?
Cash and cash equivalents Financial assef measured ai amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes an« category) as reflected on the face of ihe statement of
financial position or in e notes thersto

Class Category
Payable from exchange transactions Financial liability measured a: amortised cost
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) |

Initial recognition

The: Municipal Entity recognises s financial asset or 3 fnancial Eability in fis stsement of financal posiiion wihen the
Mesicipel Entity becomes & party fo ihe conraciual provisions of e instrument.

The Municiosl Enisy recognises financial asssis using haﬂk dats acouiing.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial lnhﬁtles

The: Municipal Entity messures; 2 finandal ssset and financisl kability initially =i its fair value plus transaction nosis that e
directly stiributable to the moguisifion o issue of the financeal assaet or financial hability.

The Municipal Entity mesares 3 finanuial asset and financial hability initially ai iis fair value.

The Municipal Enfity first assesses whether the subsiancs: of 2 concassionary loan is in fact 3 loan. On initial recograion,
ihe Municipal Enfity analyses 3 concessionary loan info iis conmponeni parts and accounts for ench component separately.
The Municipal Uiy accounis for that part of a3 concessionsay loan ihet is:
. a socisd benefit in acoondance with the Frarmk for the Preparation arnvd Presentation of Financial Statements,
wifiers i s ihe wsuer of the loen; of !
. non-exchange revenue, in sccordance wii ihcﬁla'mn! of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions |
(Taxes and Transfers), where i is ifie recipient of the loan f

Subseguent measurement of inancial assets and financial liabilities

The Municipal Entity messures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition nsing the following
categories:

. Financial msbumenis 2t fair value.

. Financial instruments ai amoriised cost.

. Finoncisl instruments &3 cost.

Al finanasl assels measured at amoriised cosi, or cost, are subjedt  an impsinment review,
| Fair value wmessurement considerations

. The: best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an aciive market. If the marked for' 2 finandial instiument is not active, the
entity esiablishes fair value by using 2 valuation technigue. The obleciive of using = valuation technigue is to establish whai
ihe irensaciion price would have been on the measursment dais in an arm's length axchengs motivated by normal
operating considerations. Valuaiion techniques inciude using receni arm's lengih nerkat transactions bebieen
knowledgeable, willing paities. if available, reference to ihe curreni fair valie of anoiher instrument ihat is substantially ins
smime discountad cash flow analysis and option pricing models. 1 ihers iz 2 valuation technigue commonly usad by mieslest
participants io price the insirumeni and thai technique hias besn demonstrated io provids refiable estimates of prices
obianed i actual market transactions, ihe entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes warinmum

use of market inputs and relies as liitle a5 possible on entity-specific inpuis. i incorporates all faciors that markst
participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with ameptedeconmﬁcnwmodologiesh pwicing financial
instruments. Periodically, an sniiiy calibrates ife valuation iechnigus and fesis it for validity using prices from any
observable cusrent market fransactions i the same instrument i 2. without modification or repackaging) or based on any
available observable market daia

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature {z2.4. 2 demand deposit) is nui less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount couid be required io be paid,

Reclassification

The Municipal Entity doss not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
. combined instrument that is required o e measured at fair value; or
+  aninvestment in & residual interest that imests the requirements for reclassification.

Where ihe Municipal Eqtity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from
a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair
value. This requires = reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.
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1.7 Financial instruments {continued)

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably Qu zn investment in 2 residual infevest messured =8 fair value, the entity
reciassifies ihe mvesimend from ialr walue © oost. The camying amount 2 the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes ihe tosi. ‘

If 2 reliable measure becomes available: for an wesiment in a residual inferest for which a measure was pevit;mjgr ok
available, and the msinmend would have been required fo be measured at faw value, the snlity reclassifies the insirumesd
from oost fo fal value :

Gains and losses

A gain of loss sxising from a changs in ine fair value of & financial asyet o7 financial kability measured si fzir value is
recogrised in suplus or defict.

For financial sssets, and fnancis] kshiliies measured si aroriised cost o cosl, 2 gam o loss s iecognised in 'upltrs oF
deficit when the financial asset or financial kability is derecognised o impaired, or through the amortisation proces

Impairment and uncolllectibility of financial asseis

The Municipal Entity assess at the end of each reporiing penui whether ithere it any objective evidence that a financial
assed or group of inancial assets s impaired.

Financal assets measured 2t amortised oost

If thewe is objective evidencs: that s impairment loss on financial asseis measured & amorfised cosi has been incunied, ihe
anound of ihe loss is measured as the difierence beiweaen the assei’s carmying amount and ihe: present value of estimaied
future cash flows (excluding future credii losses that have noi baen mcurred) discounied ai the financial asset’s onginal
effective inferest rafie. The camying amouni of ihe assed is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of ihe loss is reoognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in & subsequent penod, fhe amound of the impairment loss deoreases and the decresse can be related objectively o an
event ncourring after ihe impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairmend loss is reversad directly or by
adjusting an alowance account. The reverss! daes nol resuit in a carrying amount of the financial zsset that exceeds what
the amaoriised cost would have tieen had the impairment nof heen recognised &f ihe daie ihe impairment is.reversed. The
amount of the reversal s recognised in surplus or deficit.

Finarcial assets neasueed 2 cost

If there i« objective evidence thai aa impairment loss has been incurred on 2 investment in & residual interesi ihat is not

mezzured 2 i walus because s fair velus cannoi be measured refiably, the svounit of the impairmenl loss is measuied
a% the difference between ihe canrying amouni of ihe financial assel and the present value of sstimsied future cash flows

discounted ai ihe: curernd marksi raie of return for 2 similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed,

Derecognition
Financial assets
The Municipal Entity derecognises financial asssis using trade date accounting.

The Mumupai Entity derecognises = financial assst only when:

the contractual rights o the nash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived:

»  the Municipal Entity transfers o another party substantially all of the risks an< rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or

«  the Municipal Entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of ihe financial
asset, nas transferred control of e asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing
to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this casa, the entity
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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. 1.7 Financial instruments (continued) ‘,
| The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferrad

on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised n surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. '

if ihe Entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer thek qualifies for derecognition in s enfiiciy 2nd refains the right to

. service fhe msncisl aseei for a iee, it recognise either 2 servicing assel or a servicing lability for that seoicing confrecs. i

the fee ln be received is not exgecied o compensate the entity adequately for geriomiing ihe serviciny, 2 servicing liability
o The servicing obligation is recognised 4 its fair value. Ii the fee o be received is cxpedied fo be nre than adequate
compensation & the senvicing, & senvicing &ssel is rscognisad for the semvicing nght ¢ an arouni determined on the hasis

" ui an allocation of the casrying amount of the larger financial asset.

i, a5 2 result of 2 rassier, 3 fnsncisl assef is derecognised in iis enilrely but the transfer results in the endity obtaining =
new financial 5552 o8 assuming a new financial fiabifity, ov 3 senncing kability, the entity recognise s new finandial asset,
financial hability or servicing Eability af G value

On derecognition of a financial asset i iés entirety, the difference haiween the camying arouwnd and the sum of the
considersiion received is recognised i surplus or defict.

If ihe transferred assed is part of a larger financial asset and the transferred qualifies for derecognifion in its entirety, the
previous carmying smnowrd of the larger finandal asset is allocated the part that continues fo be recognised and the
oari that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
reieined servicing assed is reaied as 2 g that continues to be recognised. The difference beiween the canmying saumount
allocated io the part derecognised and e sum of the consideraiion received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

I a transfer does not result in derecognition because ihe Municipal Entity has refzined substantially afl Hhe risks and
resrradds of ownership of ihe transferred asset, the Municipal Entity confinue fo recognisa the transferred assei in its entirety
and recognise & financial kability for the consideraiion received. In subsequent periods, ffw: Municipal Entity recognises zny
revenue on the ransferred asset and any sypgense inoured on the financizd kability. Meither the asset, ond the associzied
liability nor the: revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Finaacial liabilities

The Municipal Entity removes @ financial liability (or a part of a financial kability) from its statement of financial position when
% is extinguished — i.e. when ihe obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

P—m exchange beiween an existing borrower znd kender of debl nstumenis with substantially difiereni ievins s accounted
for a5 heoning extinguished ihe mwmaﬂarmmma recognised. Similarly, 2 substantial
meodification of the terrivs of an existing financial liability or & part of it is accouniad for 35 having extinguished he original
financial iability znd having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between ihe carrying asmouni of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished o transferred
to another party s« the consideration paid, including ssvy non-cash ssseis transferred ov liabilities assumed, i< recognised
in surplus o deficit. Anv liabilities that aie waived, forgiven or assumed by anather Municipal Entity by way of a non-
exchange irassaciion are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP o Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions {Taxes snd Transfars)

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or 5 component that is = financial liability is recognised as revenue cv expense in
surplus or deficit.

Dividends o+ similar distributions relating ‘o a financial instrument 2+ & component thai is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue of expense i surplus or deficit.

Losses =z gains relating io = financial instrument or @ component that is a financial liability is recognised @s revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

1o
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1.7 MM{W |

Distributions to holders of residudl interests are recognised by the Municipal Entity directly in net assits. Transaction costs
incurred on residual interesis are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax fwhere appiicable] refating to
distributions to holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in
accordance with the Intemnational Accounting Standard on income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial Eability are only offset and the: nef amouni presented in the statement of financial position
wven e Municipal Entity MSGMM@!&SHWNWMMK}W&&EB”&HM
seftle on a niei basis, o to realise the asset and settie the kiabifity simultaneously.

In scuouniing for s transfer of & financal ansat fhad does not qualify for derecognition, e Municipal Enidiiy does nei offset
immsmrwmﬁmmmmv

1.8 Leases

& fease is dassified 55 2 finance lesse if it ransfers substantially all the: risks and rewards incidental o ownership. A lease
i classitied as a0 operating lease if & does nof transfer substantiaily all the risks snd rewards incidental to ownesship.

When & lease inchudes boih lared and buildings elernenis, ihe eniily assesses the classification of each slement separately.
|

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lense payments sre recognised as an expensa on 2 straight-line hasis over e lease term. The difference
between the amounis recognised s an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as ay operating lease sssed
ot hability.
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1.9 lmypairment of nm-caah—ga\ef'aﬂng assets i
Non-cash-generating asseis are assets other than cash-generating asseds. :
Wien the camying amount of a non-cash-generating assel exceeds is recoverable savvics amount, it is impaired.

auset may
Lof the asest

The Municipal Entity assesses at each reporting date whether thare is any indicabion ihat a
ke impaired. Iif any such indication axsts, the Municipal Enfity estimates the recoveralie senvice

Value in uss

! ;
Value in use of non-cash-generating ssseds is the present vahie of fiwe non-cash-generating asseis remaining service
potential.

The: present value oi the remaining setvice potential of & non-cash-generating assets is defermined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as depreuated
replacement cost of the asset. The cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross potential.
This cost is depreciated to reflect the 'asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either reproduction

(replication) of ihe existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is
measured as ihe reproduction or replacement cosi of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation
calculated on ihe basis of such cost, o isfledi ihe already consumed o expired service potential of e asset.

The replacement cosi and reproduction cost of an 2ssed is determined on e “optimised” basis. The radionake is that the
Municipal Entity would 1ot veplacs or rependuce the asset with 2 like assel i the assei o be replaced or reproduced is an

overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned asseis condain features which are unnecessary for the: goods of
services the assei pvovides, Overcapaciy assels are sssets ihat have a greater capacity then iz necessary o mesd the
demand for goods of services the assei provides. The dsierminaiion of the replacement cosi or reproduction cosi of an
asset on an opiimised basis ihus reflects ihe service potential required of fhe asset.

Recognition and measurament

if the: recoverable seywice amouni of 2 non-cash-generating aszet i3 less ihan iis carrying amount, the: carrying amount of
ihe sssel is reducsd o its recoverable service ammount. This reduciion is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised mmedizisly in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of 2 revalued non-cash-generating asset 's ireaied as a revalusiion decrsase.

WWiten the amount estimated for 21 impairment loss is greater ihan fhe cariying amound of ihe non-cash-generating assei to
which it relates, the Municipal Entity recognises 2 liability only io ihe exiznt that is a requirement in he Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss. i depreciation (almhsahon) chasge for The non-cash-generating asssi is
adjusted in future paviods io allocate the non-cash-generating ssset’s revised carrying amount, less s residual value (if
any). on & systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss
The Municipal Entity assess ai each reporting date whether ihess is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in

prior periods for a non-cash-generating asse: may no longer exist or may have decreased. if any such indication sxists, the
Municipal Entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that assat.
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1.9 impairment of non-cash—galmalmg assets (continued) |

An imparment loss recognised in prior periods for 3 non-cash-generaling a55ef i revarsad i thewe has beesh 5 change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amournd since the last impainment loss wew: recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverabie sesvice amaurd. The inGease is 2 reversal of an
paimeni loss. The moreasexd camying amount of an assei atinbutable o = reversal of an impaament loss does not
sureed the camying amount ihal would have been detenrmanad (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no mpasment loss
been recognised for the: assef in piod peiges. ,

|
& reversal of an impainment ioss for 2 non-cash-generating assss smmmmmﬁi
Afver a reversol of an impairment loss is recognised. the degeeciafion (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating

assot is adjusted in future penods o allocate e non-cash-generating assel's revised cammying amount. kess Bs residusl
value (if zny), on & sysiemaiic basis over its remaining useful life.

Redesignation

The redesignation of asseis fioim 2 cash-generabing asset zu;unmmm:rMu from a non-cash-generating
assef o @ cash-generating asset only ocouw when thers is desr evidence tha su:l'l 2 redesignation is appropriate.

1.10 Contributed capital | |

An equity msirumend i any coviracs el L!vdemm 2 residual interest i ihe assets of a Municipal Entity aiey deducting all
of i: kabilities. . |

1.11 Contingencies
Contingent zsseis and contingent iabilities are not recognised. Contingencies sre disclosed in nofe .

The Muuqaal E:niﬁy recognises 3 provision for financis] guarantees and loan comafiments wien it is probable that an
aoudfloms of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be regquirzd in settle the obligation and &

reliable estimaie of ihe cbligation can be made.

WMmumdumnmmMmm*ommmm Indications
ithat =n outflow of resources may be probable are:
o fnanciad difficulty of the debior,
»  defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
»  breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier ihan the agreed fenn and ihe
ability of the debior to setile fis obligation on ihe amended terms: and
» & dedline in prevailing economic circumsiances (e.g. high inierest rates, inflation and unemployment) it impact
o the ability of eniiiies fo repay iheiv obligations.

W¥wie a fee is received by the Municipal Sniily for issuing = financial guarantee anwilos whese o fee i charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining ihe best estimate of ihie smount required io settle ihe obligation =i reporting
tiaie. Yihere a fee is charged and the Municipal Entity considers that an outflow of econoinic resources is probable, 2
anpal Endity recognises ihe obligation af it higher of:

ine amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 2nd Contingent

Assets; and

+ e amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with (he Standard of GRAP o Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.12 Commitments

ltems are classified a5 commitments when an entity has committed itself o future transactions that will normally result i the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary o achieve a fair presentation should b2 disclosed in 2 noie to the financial
statements, if both he following critssia are mat
»  Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable i significant cust {for example, contracts for computer
¢ building maintenance services); and
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W I
Contracts should refafe to something oifer than the routine, sheaxly, stsle basiness of ihe entity — therefore
| salary commitrmenis relafing o employreent confracss or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of eonnomic: benefits or sesvice potential during the reporting peniod wiesi ihoss inflows resuli
in a2n increase in et assetls, other than incresses ielsiing to confribuBons from owmers.

|
Hn exchL'lge fraresetion s one n which e municipal eniity recefves asseis or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primanly in ihe form of goods, services or use: of assets) & the ofher party in
exchange.

Fair value is ihe amount for which an asset could b= exchanged, o a ability settled, between knowledgeable. willing
parties in an anm's length ranssetion,

Measurement

Revenue is measured 2t the fair value of ihe consideration received or receivable, sl of irade discounis and volume
rehatss.

Rentbti?g of services ;
When the outcome of a transaction ireohiing the rencdaring of services can lh|t- estitnaied rekably, revenue associsied wiith
ihe rensachon s recogmsed by reference io ihe stage of completion of the transaction & ihe reporting date. The ouicomes
of a -amsrx.?um ez be estimated reliably when 2l ihe following conditions are satisfied:
the amoui of revenus can be measured reliably;
» it is probable that ihe economic benefits o service potential associated with the transaction will flow o ihe
Municipal Enfity;
. ifw: stage of completion of ihe ransacihion ai ihe reporting tale can be measwied rekably; and
e ihe costs incurred for the rensaciion and ihe cosis to complete the transaction can be measwed reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminats mamber of sois over 2 specified lime frame, revenue s recogrised on s
straight line basis over the specified time frame uniess there is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a spedific act is much nwxe significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the ouicome of the iransachon involving ihe rendering of services cannot be esiimaied reliably, revenue is
recognised oaly o the erfeat of the expenses recognised ihai sre 1ecoverabie.

Interest
Revenue arising from ihe use by oifwrs of entity asseds yielding inieres! is recognised whein
+  liis probable that the economic benediis or ssvwics potential associated wnih the transaction will flow i the
HMunicipal Enfiy, and
«  Ths amount of the revenus can be measured reliably.
Inferest is recognised, in surplus os deficit, using ihe effective interest raic method.
1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits o+ service potential received 204 receivable by an Municipal &
which represents an increase in nai assets, oihei han increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assais are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodnedar the asset is required fo be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service
potential musst be retumed to the transferor.

Control of an zsset arise when the Municipal Entity can use or otherwise benefit froon the assel in pursuit of its objectives
and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others o that benefit.
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1.14 Revm*n from wes-sxchangs transactions {continued) |

Exchange transactions are fransaciions in which one eniity recsives sssels of services, of has labiliies exiinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primanly & the form of cash, goods. services, or use of asseis) fo another enfity in
exchange. | |

Expenses paid through the fzx system are amounis that are available io beneficianes regardiess of whether ov not they pay
Tamars.

Mon-exchenoe transactions ars fransaciions that are not exchange tansadmns'. In 2 non-eachangs transaction, an
Mwmmnwmmmuwmﬁvmmmwmm in
exchange, of gives value o anothaer Municipal Entity without divecily receiving approximately equal walue in exchange.

Restrictions on iransferred assets me stipulations that imit of diredt #hw: purposes for which a transferred asset may be
used, but do noi spedfy ihai future evonomic: benefits or service potential is required to be reburnkad io the transferor ii no

Stipulations on fransicired assets are e in kaes of regulation, or 3 binding arangsment. impasad wpon the: use of a
transferred assat by entities axiermal o the reporting Municipal Enfify.

Taor expendifures are preferential provisions of the iz law That provids cerfain taxpayers with concessions el are noi
availabie 1o eihers, 4

The taxable rwaa s the event ihat the govermment, legisiature or ofhey aulhunty hzs determined will be subject o aeaion.

Taxes are econoemic benefits or service potential compulsorily caid or payabie o entities, in accondancs with laws and o
requlztions, established o provide revenus: io govemment. Taxes do nod includs fines or other penalties imposed fox
breaches of ihe g

Transfers ;e inflows of fulure economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, oiher ihan axes,

Recognition

An inflowr of resources from 2 non-exchange fransaction recognised 25 an assef is recognised as revenue, except o ihe
exieni ihai a Rabilfity is also recognised in respect of ithe sarie inflow.

MMMWMMaMWW%aMnMMmWﬁm‘rMﬁ
non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement
Beyenue from 2 non-exchange iransaciion is measured =i the amount of ihe increase in et asseis recognised by ihe
Municipal Entity

Wihen, as & resuli of 3 non-exchange transaction, ihe Municipal Enhty recogmses A aseed, it also recognises sevenus
equivalent & ine amound of the asssi measured al is fair value as i ihe date of acquisition, uniess it iz also required o
recognise g liability. Vifere 5 liability is required o%recogmsednmlmnmmdmifr  best estimate of the amount
required to settie the obligation at ihs reporling daie, and the amount of the increase in ria! assets,  any, recognised ss
revenue. /hen a liability is subsequently reduced, because ‘he taxable svent oocurs of & condition is satisfied, the amount
of ihe reduction i the liability is recognised &s revenue,

1.15 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform is changes in presentation i the current ysar,

1.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made i vain and would have heen avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.
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1.16 Fruitless .g.n.d-mﬁlem (continued} |
All expenditure felating to fruitiess and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expensa in the statement of financial

performance in the year that the expenditure was incurmed. The expenditure is dlassified in accordance with the nature of
the expense. ﬂmwaswmuamhmmnaadmm

1.17 Irregular expenditure

Imegudar is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance ' et (Act No 5B of 20113), the
Municipal Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act 20 of 1998) or ks ity condravention of

the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Iregular expenditure exdudes imauthonsed expenditure. livegulay
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance aind whee recovered. it is
subsequently accounted or a5 revenue in ihe Statement of Financial Pesrfonimance.

1.18 Budget information

Municipal Entity are typically subjedi io budgetary Brdis in the: form of appropriations os budgei authorsations (or
equivident), whdich is given effect through authorising legisiabon, appropriation o similar.

General punposs financial repociing by Municipal Enily shall prowide information on whether resowrcss wore obtained and
e in atondance with i legally adopted budiaes.

Tmappmvadb*dget prepaedmaqmdrbasusmﬂw&s&hdhyanwnw@‘;ﬁsbmﬁ*edmmamemﬁnm
objectives.

The: apgroned budget covers ihe fiscal period from 01 Jul 2020 io 30 Jun 2021.
The budget for e econumc entity includes 2l ihe eniliy’s spproved budgets under s confrol,
The anmpa financial siziemenis and ihe budget are on e same basis of recounting therefore @ comparnison wiih the:

budgeted amourds for the reporting period hawve: been included & ihe Statement of comparison of budget and sciual
AVOANES

1.19 Related parties

The Municipal Endity opesates in an economic secior currently dominsied by eniities direcily or indirectly ovwmed by s
South African Government. As 2 conseguence of fhe constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in
South Africa, only entities within ihe nalional sphere of government are considered o be reluied pariies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing aoxd controlfing ihe activities of ihe Municipal Entity,
including those charged with the governance of ihe Municipal Entity in accordance wiih legislation, in msiznces where they
are required io perform such funclions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered o be those family members who may be expected o influence, or
&e influenced by, hai management in ihsir dealings with ihe Municipal Entity.

Only transactions with related parties nof =i arm's length or not in the ordinary cowrse of business ave disclosed.
1.20 Events after reporting date
Ewends after reporting date ave those events, boih favourable ani unfavourable, ihai oo between ihe reporting dais and

the date when the financial statements &= authorised for issue. Two types of svent « be identified:
»  those that provide evidence of conditions thai existed ai ihe reporting dafe (adjusting evenis after the reporting

date); and
»  those ixal are indicative of conditions tha! arsse after ihe reporting date (non-adjusting svenis after #he reporting
date).

The Municipal Entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting svents after the
reporting date nacs the event occurred.
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1.20 Events lhafllnporlmg date {comtinued} !
The Municipal Entity will disciose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such
estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where could infiuence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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Figures in Rand

2.  New standands and interpretations | |
2.1 Standards and interpretations not yet gﬁ“mﬁt&,— or relevant |

The following standards 2nd interpretations have been published and 2ie mandatory for the safiiy’s accounting perods
beginning on o ziter 01 July 2021 rrhﬁespemdsbtnaemmnkwmmmupetm

GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments ; ‘

Following ih= global finandial crisis, 2 number of oonceras were raised sbout the accounting for financial instruments. This
inchuded ihai (=) mformation on aredit lesses and defaulis on financial asseis was received toc kate ‘o enable proper
decision-making, (b) using fair mmmW1mWﬁm and {c} soroe of the existing accounting
resurSIGenis were seen a3 00 ndes based. As 3 result, the Intemational Accounting Standards Board® simenwded s
axisting Standards o deal with these issues. The IASB issued IFRS® Standard on Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) in 2009
o axkiress many of the concems raised. Revisions were slso made o IAS® oa Finencial Insiiumenis: Presentation aad e
IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The IPSASB issued revised International Public Sector Acoouniing
Standards in June 2013 so a5 o align ihem with the sqguivedent IFRS Standards.

The revisions beties align e Standards of GRAP with iecend infaimaiionsl developimernis. The amaendments result m better
information availaiide i make decisions ahoutﬁnanoara:: seds and thels recoverability, and more transparentmformahon m
financial kabilities. l

The most significant chunges o the Standard sffect
Financial guarantee conivacts issued

L oan commitments issued

Classification of financial assais
Spnoritised cogi of financial asseis
Impairment of financial asseis
Disclosurss

® ® ® & s

The: effective date of the standand is not yet set by the Minister of Finance,

The: Biunicipal Enfity does not emvisage ihe adoption of the standard vl such ime s it becomes applicable io the
Miunicipal Endity’s operations. !

Gudideline: Cuideline on Accounting for Landfiil Sites

The objective of ihis guidefine: The Constitution of Souih Afvica, 1298 {Act Mo, 108 of 1896) (the constiution), gives local
govermnment i executive authority ower the functions oi cleaning, r=fuse removal, refuse durnps aned solbid wasie disposal.
Ever though wasie disposal aclivities 2= mainly underiaken by municipalities, aiher public secior entities may also be
involved in these activities from fime io lime. Concems weis raised about ihe inconsistent zcoonniing practicss for izndfil
sites and the related rehabilitation provision whers entities undertake wasie disposal activities. The objective of the
Guideline is therefore io provide guidance fo entities ihat manage and operate lan«iiill sites. The guidance will improve
comparability =i} provide il necessary information o ihe users of the financial sizdemanis to hold entities accountable
and for decision making. The principles from the relevant Standards of GRAP =re applied is accounting for ihe landfill site
and ihe related rehabilitation provision. ¥/hzie appropriate, the Guideline also illustrates {he accounting for the land in &
landfill, the landill site asset and the related rehabilitation provision.

it covers: Overview of ihe legislative requirements that govemn landfill sites, Accounting for land, Accounting for e landfill
site asset, Accounting for the provision for rehabilitation, Closure, End-use and monitoring, Other considerations, and
Annexures wit Terminology & References to pronouncements usad in the Guideline.

The effective date of the standard is not vet sei by the Minister of Finance.

The Municipal Entity does noi envisage the adoption of the guideline until such time &5 & becomes applicable ¢ the
Mumicipsl Entity's operations.
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Figures in Rand ritrg | 2021)

i |
3. Receivables from e transactions | ;
Rental deposits 3386 3386
QOther receivahbles 43 556 -

53 968 8424

Oiher receivables relzies o an sround of R4T 596 remwable originafing froin & cou® order in Bavour of GTEDA

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions
scretonary grani receivmable from SETA 1421 149 221
5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash suuivalerds consest of
Cash on Feang 176 17s
Bank balances ! 170 813 11389
Other cagh and cash equivalents i 1 064 235 92 453%
1235024 104 018
The entity had the following bank accounis
Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 36 June 2021 3@ Jusve 2020 30 Jume 2019
Petty Cash - ABSA BANK - - - - 176 176 179
Cheque Account 40-7 1664582
ABSA BANK -Uheoue SAcoount 25473 6 580 93 850 23 G589 @3 850
A0-7166-4582
AHSA BANK - 32day Wolice 365 365 356 365 365 356
Account 92-2181-4770
ABSA HANK - Depositor Plus 1 063 870 92086 £ag 1 083 870 92 0BG B8
Bocound 92-8795-3029
ABSE Bank - Classic Business 147 140 4 B0 321 o4T 147 140 4 5 J21 a7
Account (SETA) 40-94562-4490
Total 1234 848 103 840 417 951 1 235 024 104 016 437 208
6. Property, plant and equipment
2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Fumniture and fixtures 286 578 (189 996) 95 582 288 411 (177 810) 110 BO1
Office equipment 33311 {31 659) 1852 37 278 (32 275} 5002
IT equipment 366 670 (188 181 178 508 248776 (204 7203 41 058
Total 686 559 (409 816) 276 743 571 465 (414 606) 156 858
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I %
6. Property, plant and equipment {coa‘rﬁnued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and eguipsmneng - 2021

Opening Additions Depreciation Impairment Total
balance loss
Furndiowe: 20wl fixtures \ 110 34y - (14 135) (54) 96 582
Office expiipment : 5002 - {3 159) (191) 1 657
IT equipment 41058 177 111 (33 571) (6 087) 178 509
156 859 177 111 (50 895) (6 332} 276 743

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

Opening Additions  Depreciation Total

balance
Fumiture anc fixtures 21 514 104 452 (14 165) 110 601
Office equigheni 10038 - {5 0386) 5002
IT equipment g5 140 - {44.084) 41 056
115 8932 104 452 (63 285) 158 853

& register coniaining the informiaiion required by seciion 63 of the Municipal Firmncs Manaogemend Ac is available for
mspechm af the registerad oifice of the Municipal Eniity

7. Intangible assets

2021 2020

Cost/ Accumanlated Carryling vallue Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value

Valiuation  smoriisation Valuation eliatalesiciela T T

and and

accismulated acoumulated

impairment impairment
Computer software 4B 687 (38 046) 10 641 48 607 (35 918) 12 768
Wehsie 45 051 (41 669) 3382 45051 (40 993) £ 058
Total 83738 (79 715) 14 023 93738 {76 911) 16 827

Recongciliation of intangible assets - 2021

Opening  Amworiisation Total

balance
Computer software 12 769 (2 128) 10 841
Other intangible asseis 4058 (676) 3 382
16 827 (2 804) 14 023

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020

Opening  Amortisation Total

balance
Computer software 14 857 (2 128) 12 7548
Chher intangible asssis 4734 (676) 4 058
19 6831 (2 804) 16 827
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201 ¢ 2020

| |

i |

[ |
8. Payablies from exchange transactions
Rental 2nd other expenses 18 315 125180
Accrued lesve pay 57 B64 41272
Other payables 167 370 121021

243549 | 287 473

9. SARS
VAT sndd inferest 2 T3 755 2 524) 877

The VAT payable consists of assesumernds issued by SARS, provision fur inferest and VAT payable on the grant received from
Greater Tzaneen Municipality s well 25 a refund of R470 000 received from Greater Tzaneen Municipalitg

10. Contributed capital

1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each : 1000 | 1000
Issued

Ordinary Shares 100 100
11. Revenue

Other incowne: - (rollup) 43 596 &
Interesi received - invesimend 14 £33 30 700
Government grants & subsidies 5961 106 & 146 480
Discretionary giad received from SETA - 903 261
Admindstrafion and project management fee - SETA 75237

Grant recsived - LG SETA " 148 200 653 640

9172 350 9222 298

Thve amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services

are as follows:
Orihey incomne -~ (roflup) 43 596 ~
interesi recevead - investment 1% 488 30 700

63 084 30 700

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as

follows:

Taxation revenue

Transfer revenue

Govemment grants & subsidies 2861 108 8 146 460
Discretionary grant received from SETA - 953 261
Administration and project management fee - SETA - 73237
Grant received - LG SETA 148 200 a8 840

9109 306 9191 598

12. Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants
Greater Tzaneen Municipality £ 961 106 & 146 460

(37
]
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2024 2020

|
13. Administration and project management <= from SETA

Admin and project management fee - SETA : - 73 257

InmdmwadMSHAWTocmdmmmemServuesSETAstem:aryGtw
Policy a maximum of 7.5% of the amount of grant funding may be tﬁmmdfhmm:i wi project
management costs (Tadministration costs”)

14. Employee related cosis

Basic 2 863 853 2841134
Bonus - 54 490
Oiiver payroll levies ( Statutory Lewies) 1070 019 1171 357
Leave pay pvovision change 107 30z 44 489
Overtime payments - 11432
13th Chespes 92 362 B9 115

4133 538 4211 58%

Cmﬁpmﬁolv of Executive Directors

#..1. Maphoto - Chief Executive Officer

Arnnusd Remuneration 874 843 1 (26 342
Performance Bonusas - 82 371
Travelling 115 024 105 9214

989 487 1224 834

M.W. Mulaudzi - Acting Chief Exeoudive Officer
Aciing Allorrance 50818 -

15, Remwuneration of hoard members

Board fees a76 192 407 050
30 June 2021 Emoluments Travel Tokz
M.Z Mawasha (Chairperson) 125824 & 270 134 095
M.F Mushwana 96 837 . 96 437
411 Moakamela 70 766 - 70 768
8.1 Mathebula 74 480 . 74 480
367 922 8 270 376 192
30 June 2020 ' Emoluments Travel Total
#4.Z Mawasha (Chairperson) 150 381 24078 174 4589
Adv £.3 Maake 40 167 5463 46 620
81 F Mushwana 70 766 3316 74 082
M.J Makapan 48 41¢ 28 895 75314
M.l Moakamela 67 041 4 378 7144%
B.J Pretorius 3724 3044 8768
2.1 Mathebula 44 694 3694 £3 388
425 182 71 868 497
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Figuwes in Rand | 221 2020
|
16. IDrem-:.ﬁaﬁqu and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment 505 895 63 285
Intangible assets | 2 805 2 805
53 700 66 090
17. General expenses \‘
Advertising and marketing 44 842 18 512
Auiitors fees : Moke 21 378934 268 748
Phank changes 17773 29335
Baprsanes 274 600 95 050
Consumables 741 acs5
Covid-1% expensas 383018 -
Entertainment 280 1317
Fines avul penalieos: SARS 13654 54
Fust aid . 1778
Insurance 16 851 16 750
IT expenses ' 74 355 & 558
Postage and | 1296 -
Printing and statiol 15 Bad 297N
Recruitment costs 45872 -
SEnuriy 4403 4 965
Seminar and workshogs - 7251
Subscriptions and membership fess 63 145 I2675
Tedephons and fax 177 147 127 219
Training 57 200 75 887
Trawel - local 292 149 259 222
VAT adjusment # - 303 245
1 871 985 1 339 390

# The VAT adjustment relaies o the corrediion of the VAT liability acoount. Provision has been made for the assessmenis

rzised by SARS, accrued interest and any joirnals passed by SARS on the aocount
18. Project cosis

Business support cendre

443 567

1570 385

Livestock {Lsaiher Making) 4 820 8 551
Radio Station {GTFM) 8 254 13754
455 821 1592 690

19. Cash generated from (used in) operations

Surplus 1008 875 448 660

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 53 700 66 090

Impairment loss 6332 -

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions (45 542) (1949)

Qther receivables from non-exchange transactions 145 800 570779

Payables from exchange transactions (4% 925) (402 519)

Vet 182 879 (887 423)
1308 119 (208 762)

55
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration nuwiber 2007/008144/07)
Annual Financial Ststaments for the vear ended 30 Jume 2027

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand ; 2021 2020
|
20. Taxsiion ; i
Thee entily ks esternpl from income: fax in lermes of Sedhion S10{1)CA)(i) of he Income !w1 Aok
21. Awditors’ remuneration
External audit fees 198 325 2149 600
irgernal sudii fees 152 608 49 148
JFR 934 268 748

22. Related parties
Relationships
Controlling cniity
Major stakeholders

identity of related parties

The parent shareholder is Greater Tzaneen Municipality (GTM) and the ullimate confrollin

Municipality (GTM).

Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Chief Execuiive Officer and Board ( Nois 14 and 22)

Wy party is Gireadar Tauneen
|

The Board of Directors comprises of direciors as listed in the directors repori and its commiiices, namely ihe Finance and
Risk Commities, HR Committee and Projedd, Invesiment Committee and Social Committes.

Greater Tzaneen Municipality Audit Commiiiiee ( Shared).
Thess are: no entifies that aie related to the direciors of the Board.
Related party transacions

Grant received fiom relsisd parties
Greater Tzanean Municipality

Compensation to Chief Executive Officey : K.J Maphoto
Annual rmuneration

Performance Bonus

Travelling

Compensation to Acting Chief Executive Officer: M.W. Mulaudzi

Annual remuneration

8 5681 106

8 145 480

874 447 1026 342

= 92 371
115 044 105 921
989 487 1224634




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
{(Regisiretion number 2007 DOS 144473
Anaus] Financizl Statements for ihe year ended 30 June 20217

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand .

| i
23. Risk management i i

Financial risk mnagunrmt

Tiwe Muucipal Evélly manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual
forecasted cash flow and its cash management policy. mmwmmmﬂm

The: canrying amount of the financial kabilities represents ine liquidity exposure. The nmwunwinw
exposuie af the reporting stz wias:

At 30 June 2021 Less than 1  Between 1
waar and 2 years

Tradie and oiher oawabiles 2847 305

At 30 June 2030 Less than 1 Beimeen 1
year and 2 years

Trate and oifver paysbles ‘ 2 808 350 -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists waanly of cash deposiis. cash equivalents, derivative financial mstmnents and trade debtors. The
Municipal Entity only deposits cash wiith major banks with high quality wedii standing and limiis exposurs i any one
counter-party.

Trsoke receivables comprise a widespread cusiomer bass. Management evalusied credit visk relating to cusiomers on an
ongoing basis. i cusiommsrs are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rafing.
usﬁmntml.:sw@..,e.v the credit quality of the customer, taking iniio account iis financial position, past experience and oiher
factors. Indivicdusl sk leniis sre st based on internal or exiernal ratings i accoriances with lirdis sef by ihe board. The
uhﬁsahm oi credii limits is regularly monticred. Sales o retail cusiomers are settied in cash or using major credii camis.
Credii guarantee insurance is puichased when deeme sppwoprisie.

Financial instrumment ‘ e v 2029

Cash and cash equivalents 1235 024 104 038
Sarket risk

Inferest raie nisk

Interest rzie risk is the risk ihai the fair value or future cash flows of a financial wsirumesst will fluctuate because of changes

in the market interest rafes

As the Municipal Ervdity has no significant inferest-besiing assets, ihe Municipal Endity's incoime and operating cash flovwrs

are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Registratim pumter 2007/008144807)
Annual Financial Siztements for the vear snded 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figpwe:s in Rand i X214 2020

24, Commitments ‘ {

Aughorised operating axpa]ldlhn |

Already contracted for but not provided for |

. Internal Audit 198 000 180 000

+ T support 65 550 44 170

*  Cleaning sarvices ‘ : 145 000 .

+  Cellphone ‘ 48 300 55 587

e Panasonic -copier renial 192176 23970

+  Office lease / rental _ 43225 35488

o Sccouniing and keafion ; 143 052 140 000
633 303 483 215

IT support:

Bohkabelo Compaiers, s is an 1T suppor condvact 2 P 3 450 pomn. appointed for o period of twenty fous (24) mosiths fon

0122021 to 310172023 (comimitment penod 19 months).

Cell phone coniraci:

Wodacom condract for the bliwmg oificaad, this is ceill phone comiract 28 R2 300 p.m appointed mu 2 penod of twenty four

(24) monihs:
Projeci Manager (28/04/2021 o 31/03/2023). R 2 300 g, (comralimeni penod 21 monihis)
Internal Audit:

Tlzdi and associates inc is an Intemal Audit Company confracied at 2198 000 appointed for 2 petiodd not excesding four

fnonths fror 01 May 2021 o 31 Augusi 2021 for provision of inlternal sudil seonces.

Panasonic

Panasonic is 3 company coniracted for the renisl copier machine R 4 794 per monit for 2 period of fifty three monihs

(0110672017 o 311072021}, {commitment period 4 moriis).

Office rental:

Tzaneen Steel Indusiry is a contract ior office renial 28 R 42 225 per monih for 2 period of twelve monihs (10802020 w

31/07/2021). commitment period 1 monih.

Accounting and taxation services

Tauisa Consuliing is & company contracted for accounting and taxation ssivices for a period of thirty sik months

(01/06/2019 to 31/05/2022), conwnitmeni period 11 mionihs.
Cleaning Services

Kgoane Trading Eniceprise is 2 cleaning semvice contracted at R29 000 p<+ months appainted for  perod of twelve menths

from 14:11/2020 to 31/10/2021, commitment paiiod 4 months.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)

szl Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

25. Prior year adjustments

2019 Fisvancial

Giant and subsicdianes - R1 025 217

|

Grant received from Greater Tzaneen Municipality rmexemp!fromvm subsequent to iire VAT objection being lodged

givd SARS agreeing io change in VAT rate on the grant

Gereval expenses - (R52 296)

VAT adjustment due in allowed VAT objection allocated under gmera! expenses - R59 §42

Employee Cost — R112 238

Travel and accommodegion sraviously disclosed under employee cosis weas reclassified o general expenses - R112 238

SARS - R3 427 6386

A detailed VAT reassestament vas periormed in respect of ithe output VAT on granis recetwed from Greater Tzaneen
Municipality. Objeciions wiere lodged with SARS and the subsequent VAT suddit was performed and the VAT liability payable

has been reduced.

Intangible zsseis — R19 831

Reduciion of accumulated amnoriisation due fo assessment of uskiul life.

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue from exchange transaciions
Inferest reveived

Transfer revenue

Government grants aind subsidies
Discretionary grant received - SETA
Adminisirafion and project management cosis
Expanditure

Employee cosis

Remuneration of the Board
Consulting fees

Deprec:atron and arnorisation
General expansas

Lesses renials 2 operating lesse

Project cosis
Surplus ! (loss) for the year

Statement of financial position

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment

intangible assets

Payable from exchange transactions

SARS

Contributed capital

Accumulated deficit

2019 Adjustment 2019 Restafed
Prieviousty
reported

23230 23 230

6 854 783 1025 217 7 880 600
2 B9 502 (217 388) 2681 114
217 388 - 217 386
3781601 112 238 (3679 383)
{914 224) - (914 224)
(274 380) - (278 380)
(69 020) . (69 020)
(2 015 507} (52 296) {2 057 803)
(509 839) (509 839)
{3 148 925) 217 38 (2 931 5373
(753 593) 1085 159 331 566
2018 Adjustment 2019 restated

Previously
reported

B 475 - G475

720 000 - 720 D00
417 236 - 417 230
115692 - 115692

- 15 831 19 631
(690 392) - (690 392)
(6 835 937} 3427638 {3 408 289)
'1w) = (700)
(6 267 032) 3447 269 {2819 763)
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Ragisiration muimber 2007/008144/07)
Anrszl Financial Statements for ihe yvear ended 30 Juns 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

28. Fruitless am! wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 245 920 245

836
Penaities and interest: SARS ( VAT) ; 13654 84
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement 259574 245 930

7%WWMEergfmmiaﬁﬁmmmmhmmm
aexpenditure related o Penally and inferesis fee on Isfie paywerd of SARS-PAYE and Penalty and interes! incurred on e
VAI Eability. Subsequently, i was referred io MPAC munveshgatvoq.

A fruitless and wasteful regisier (.omuumu the details of all the trantschons supporting the fruiless and wasteful balance is
awsilable = the registered address of GTEDA

27. [Deviation from supply chein management regulations

Paragraph 12{1){d){(i) oi Govenment gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 siafes hat a supply chain managemend
policy must provide for ihe procurernent of goods and services by way of a compestitive bidding process.

PaagmphaﬁdnemgazeuestatesmmunAmnmgOﬁkzm&spenseuﬂﬂm oifcial procurement process in
circumstances, Wded&athemrdsher&amforaqdamhmsmdmgnm‘shwm ihe naxi meeting of the
ting Officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements.

An amount of L 328 681 was prooured during the financizd year under reviews and the process followed in procuring those
services devisied from five provisions of paragraph 12(13(d)() as stated above. The reasons fur ihese deviations wers
documented arud reported io ihe Accouniing Officer who considered thiern and subsequenily approved the deviation from
the normial supply chsin menagament regulations.
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Regisirstion mxnber 2007/008144M7)
Annual Finencisl Statements for the year envied 30 Juns 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

28. | Budget differences
Muiorial differences between budget and actual amounts
Explanation of variances between approved and final budget greater than 10%

of Financial Performance

Revenue
Interest received (100%)

The varianGe is due o inferst eamed on higher investment balance than anticipated
Vanance is R19 488 (Budgst. R 0) and (Aciual R 15 488)

Grant received - LG SETA (100%)
The: wanancs i dus o fhe pros yesar provision (receivable) on service sefa which was received in the cunrent year
Variance iz K148 200 (Budesi: R 0) and (Achual: 2 148 200)

Expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation (38,67%) |
The under-spending on the purchasing of ICT infrastructure, which was affected by the National Lockdiown, lead o ife

variance.
Variance is R 33 855 (Budget: R B7 555) and (Actual: R 53 700)

Leasz rental (41.67%)

Varience is due o ihe underspending on copier rental, a5 it was affected by the Nation:l lockdown. Employees were
working remotely, therefore there wias less printing copier & printing aciivities.

Vanance is R 446 746 (Budget: 7 1 072 0680) and ( Aciual R 625 314)

Repairs and maintznance (100%)
The variance is due o non-expenditure on repairs and malnienanss during ihe paviod under review,
Variance ts R2 500 (Budget: R 2 500) and (Actual: R 0)

Consuliing fees {(43%)
The vanance i= due {o overspending on accountingtaxation cosis which was delayed by SARS response..
Variance is - H3%5 441 (Budget: 2 909 969 and (Actual: 7 514 528)

nterest expense (100%)
VWasiance is due o non-expenditure on inferesi during the period under review
Variance is R1 524 (Budget: & 1 524) and (Aciual R 0)

Project costs (34.34%.)

The variance is due fo the underspending of projects given ihai mosi of the projects wers noi fully implemented due io the
National Lockdown.

Variance is R304 331 {Budgst R886 130) and (Actual: R 581 799)

Loss on scrapping of assets (100%)

The variance is dus o the impairment lass on assels surapped during the year of review.

Variance is RE 332 (Budget: R 0) and (Actual: R 8 332)

General expenses (44.77%)

Variance is due to fhe underspending on general expenses that were affected by the National Lockdown.
Variance is ? 1 482 165 (Budget: & 3 210 682) and (Actual: R 1828 517)

Statement of Financial Position

Property, plant and equipment (24.63%)
Variance s due to the Municipal Entity not acquiring all budgeted items duie to cashflow constraints.
Variance is R 57 888 (Budget: R 235 000) and (Actual: R 177 112}

B
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Regisiradion number 2007/008144/075
Annual Financizl Statements for the yeor ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures m Rand 201

29. Other income

Other income [ 43 59

Other iicome relates io an amound of R47 596 receivable originating from 2 court order in favour of GTEDA




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

Appendix B

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021
Cost/Revaluation

Accumulated depreciation

Adiditions

Rand

Disposals

Randg

AsRLs wrii
aft

GClosing
Balanca
Rand

Deprociation

fennd

fieanal

Tmipairment loss

Shfier assets

TS 580
e 578
210 a2t

(188 181)
(169 006)
(37 669)

571 48§

VT T2

GuG 859

{414 606)

(400 B186)

TR 871 465

1Y 112

Gl B8

{414 606}

Intanglble asapts

A% ey
A% 034

196 018)
{40 G35}

B2 728

93 758

(78 2B

14 023

O0)
{16 851}

{50 imy)
(2 804

(491 4671

(s 69;

68 Si8




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

Appendix B

2020

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Dpeaing Additians Disposals Tranufers Revaluaiions Disposals Trangiers Depreciation
Balunce ,
Rand Rang Rand Rt g [RE] it Fand s Ranu
Other assets
» - i
- - - - (27 240) () $ 008
467 914 104 481 - - - (3¢ 3D - - iBE 284y {414 606) 1456 859
467 314 104 451 - - - - #7148 - s iE 204 (414 606) 146 B9
" - (33 700) . 3 (36 91b)
L o . (a0 317 . (670) (40 943)
2373 = - o “ - 1971 - L3 BG4S (18 911) 16 527
00
» B . 474 468 - (63 284) (414 BOG)
B o - . 93 758 » - (2 Bod) (76 011)
104 441 - - - - 203 (420 429) - - (B0 Gl 13175 173 G636
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

Appendix G1

Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by standard classification)
for the year ended 30 June 2021

2021/2020

Original et
Fudgst acljust
{1.1.0. 828 and Budige
%31 of the
MPMA) Adjustmaonts
Budget
Fand Band farud Fand Rt Rand Fand
Pavanut - Fuacnonal
Economic A srvvirarmndnin 8 961 [G& 4 961 108 9 298 438 Tit 284 96 % 9 GAe TI -
duvelopment & fan s

- & eE) 08

Total Reven - Functions 8 4961 106

- 8 901 106 G172 480 211 284 G 223 38¢

Expenditure - Functional

$ T3 BY2

B 163 646 {1914 @18} 8 7YE A%l

8105 518 B % B TTH 638

5y (812 786)

{1341% Aat 660




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

Appendix G2

Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal entity vote)
for the year ended 30 June 2021

2021/2020 2020/
2019

Originat

Fearig R Fansd Bana

Revenue by Vote

srwiromental 2evices

106 - B $51 106

Expenditure by Vote
appropriated

BEC/ICPE

Expenditure by Ve 19,87 %

39,8617

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year {817 TE8Y [T
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

Appendix G4

Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard classification and funding
for the year ended 30 June 2021

2021/2020 2020/
2019

Origpinal Budget Finat fuigesi
Adjustmonts
HBudget
Rand Rand Fand Rana Feand Rang
axpenditure - Vote
- axponditure

A7 LR NH] 255 006 TR {57 @mf 145 %

tal nufit-year expenditur sub- 456 000 235 gog 17T 112 (57 BoN} IH
Single-yaar axpenditure
Total Capital Expanditura - Vote 238 600 255 800 177 112 37 588 3% 194 48%

Capital Expenditure - Functional

Page S5



